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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the shareholders of
Applus Services, S.A.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Applus Services, S.A., which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 December 2014 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows
and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying financial statements so that they present
fairly the equity, financial position and results of Applus Services, S.A. in accordance with the
regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company in Spain (identified in Note 2.1 to
the accompanying financial statements) and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibifity |

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those regulations
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment .of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also mncludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Deloitte, 5.L. Inscrita en gl Registre Mercandil de Madrid, tomo 13,650, secdian 82, folio 185, hoja M-54414, inscrpcion 962 C LE: B-79104469.
Domicilio social: Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28020, Madrid. -






Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the equity
and financial position of Apptus Services, S.A. as at 31 December 2014, and its results and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework
applicable to the Company and, in particular, with the accounting principles and rules contained therein.

Report on Other Legal and Regualatory Requirements

The accompanying directors’ report for 2014 contains the explanations which the directors consider
appropriate about the Company’s situation, the evolution of its business and other matters, but is not an
integral part of the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information in the
directors' report is consistent with that contained in the financial statements for 2014. Our work as
auditors was confined to checking the directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not
include a review of any information other than that drawn from Applus Services, S.A.’s accounting
records.

DELOITTE, S.L.
Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

Ana Maria Gibert

25 February 2015
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Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulafory financial reporting
framework applicable o the Company (see Nofes 2 and 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A.

INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2014

{Thousands of Euros)

Notes 2014 2013
CONTINUING OPERATIONS;
Revenue- Note 10.1 46.405 203.525
Services 46.405 203.525
Staff costs- Note 10.2 (12.672) {12.958)
Wages, salaries and similar expenses (12.439) (12.812)
Employee benefit costs {233) {146)
Other operatirg expenses- (2.004) {960)
Qutside services (1.279) {958)
Taxes other than income tax (725) {2)
Other profiti{L.oss) Note 10.4 {4.081) -
Profit from operations 27.648 18%.607
Finance income- 1.226 13
From miarketable securities and other financial instruments of third parties 1,226 13
Finance costs- Notes 10.3 & 11.1 [27.066) (58.760)
Cn debts to Group companies and associates {13) (14.369)
On debts to third parties (27.053) (44.391)
Exchange differences 741 [404)
Financial loss [26.099) {59.151)
Profit (Loss) before tax 2.549 130.456
Corporate income tax Note 9 11.058 (17.141)
Profit {Loss) for the year from continuing operations 13.607 113.315
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Profit for the year from discontinued operations net of {ax - -
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13.607 113.316
Profit/ (Loss) per share (ELR per share)
- Basic : 0,111 0,188
= Dijuted 4,111 0,188

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 and Appendix | are an integral part of the income statement for 2014.

24 February 2015, Barcelona

D. Christopher Cole
Chairman

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer
Board Member

D. Mario Pardg Rojo
Board Member

D, Fernando Basabe Armijo
Board Member

D. Emesto Gerardo Mata Lopez
Board Member

D. Alex\Wagenberg Bondarvoschi
Board Member

b. Richard Campbell Neison
Board Member






Transiation of financial statemenis originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting

framework applicable to the Company (see Nofes 2 and 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails,

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A,

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2014
A} STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
(Thousands of Eures)

2014 2013
PROFIT {LOSS) PER INGOME STATEMENT () 13.607 113.315
Income and expense recoegnised directly in equity;
Arising from cash flow hedges - 51
Tax effect - (15)
Total income and expense recognised directly in equity {ll} - 36
Transfers to profit or loss:
Arising from cash flow hedges - 3.564
Tax effect - (1.069)
Totai transfers to profit or loss (i1} - 2,495
Total recognised income and expense (HI+11) 13.607 115.846

The accompanying Notes 1 to 15 and Appendix | are an integral part of the statemenit of recognised income and expense for 2014.

24 February 2015, Barcelona

D. Christopher Cole
Chairman

D. Ernesto Gerardo Mata Lépei
Board Member

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer
Board Member

D. AlexWagenkerg Bondanoschi
Beard Member

D. Mario Pardo Rojo
Board Member

D. Fernando Basabe Armijo
Board Member

D. Richard Campbell Nelson
Board Member
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Translation of financial staterents originelly issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulaiory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Company (see Noles 2 and 15). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanist-languege version prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR 2014
{Thousands of Euros)

Notes 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (i): {3.369} 162.315
Profit {Loss) for the year before tax 2.549 130.458
Adjustments for-
Bividend revenus Note 11.1 (28.331) {190.000);
Finance income Note 10.1 {1.228) (13}
Finance costs Note 10.3 27.066 58.760
Exchange differences {741} 404
Changes in working capital-
Trade and other receivables {10.773} {1.037)
Trade and other payables 409 8.812
Other current liabilities (1.265) -
Other cash flows from operating activities-
Rividends received Mote 11,1 21.931 190.000
Interest paid (28.368) (31.746}
Interest received 16.487 13
Corporate Income 1ax paid (1.107) (3.334)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {lI): {131.196) {112.502)
Proceeds from disposal-
Group companies and associates Note 5,1 & 5.2 55,763 -
Other assets Note 5.1 1100 1.474
Payments due to investment-
Loans to Group companies and associates Note 5.1 {188.059} (113.976)|
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {HI): £9.942 {3.9186)
Proceeds and payments relating to equity instruments-
Proceeds from equity instruments Note 7 291.880 -
Proceeds and payments re{ating to financial Gability instruments-
Proceeds from issue of bank borowings Note & 497.143 -
Proceeds from issue of borowings from Group companies znd associates Note 11.2 119,798 57.858
Repayment of bank borrowings Note 8 {818,880} (2.9186)
Repayment of borrewings from Group companies and associates - {57.858)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (IV): {501} -
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (H+Hl+V) {45.124) 45,897
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46.147 250
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1.023 46.147

The accompanying Notes 1 1o 15 and Appendix I are an integral part of the statement of cash flows for 2014.

24 Fehruary 2015, Barcelona

D. Christopher Cole D. Emesto Gerarde Mata Lopez
Chairman Board Member

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer D. Alex Wagenberg Bondanwschi
Board Member Board Member

D. Mario Parde Rojo D, Richard Campbell Nelsoen
Board Member Board Member

D. Femando Basabe Amijo
Board Member
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Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable to the Company (see Notes 2 and 15). in the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language
version prevails.

Applus Services, S.A.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended
31 December 2014

1. Company activities

Applus Services, S.A. (formerly Applus Technologies Holding, S.L., “the Company”} was incorporated as a
private limited liability company for an indefinite pericd of time on § July 2007 under the name of Libertytown,
S.L.U., which was changed to Applus Technologies Holding, S.L on 10 July 2008 and to its current name on 4
March 2014. When the Company was incorporated its registered office was established at calle Aribau no. 171,
Barcelona. On 28 November 2007, the registered office was moved to its current location at Campus de la UAB,
Ronda de la Font del Carme s/h, Bellaterra, Cerdanyola del Vallés (Barcelona). On 4 March 2014, the
shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting resolved to change the Company from a private limited
liability company to a public limited liability company.

Since 28 November 2007 the Company has been the Parent of the Applus Group (“the Applus Group” ot “the
Group).

On 10 July 2008, the Company's then sole shareholder at that date amended its Company's object. The
Company's object is now as follows:

= The provision of services related to the automotive industry and vehicle and road safety (engineering
processes, design, testing, standardisation and certification of second-hand vehicles) and technical
inspections for other non-automotive industries except for reserved activities subject to special
legislation.

o The performance of technical audits of all manner of facilities used for vehicle roadworthingss or
monitoring tests throughout Spain and abroad and any other type of non-vehicle inspections.

¢ The preparation and performance of all manner of studies and. projects relating to the foregoing
activities, whether of an economic, industrial or technical nature or relating to real estate, computing or
market research, and the supervision, management and rendering of services and provision of
counselling on the performance thereof.

» The provision of advisory, administration and management services of a technical, tax, legal or
commercial nature.

» The provision of commercial intermediation services in Spain and abroad. The provision of all manner of
quality and quantity inspection and control services, statutory inspections, cooperation with the public
authorities, consulting, audit, certification and standardisation services, personnel training and skill-
building and technical assistance in general aimed at enhancing quality, safety and environmental
organisation and management.

¢ The performance of laboratory or in situ studies, work, measurements, trials, analyses and controls
using the professional methods and means deemed necessary or appropriate and, particularly, relating
fo materials, equipment, products and industrial facilities in the mechanical, electrical, electronics and IT
fields and the areas of transport, communications, administrative organisation, office computerisation,
mining, foodstuffs, environment, construction and civil engineering at the design, project, manufacturing,
construction, assembly and start-up phases and subsequent maintenance and production for all manner
of companies and public and private entities including central government, autonomous community,
provincial and municipal authorities and for all manner of bodies, institutions and users in Spain and
abreoad.



¢ The acqguisition, holding and direct or indirect management of shares or other equity investments or

ownership interests in share capital andfor securities entitling the holder to obtain shares, equity
investments or ownership interests in companies of any kind and entities with or without legal
personality incorporated under Spanish law or any other applicable legislation in accordance with Article
116 of the Consolidated Spanish Corporation Tax Law, approved by Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, of
5 March, or any legal provisions that may replace such legislation, and the direct or indirect
management of any such company or entity through the membership, attendance at or holding of
positions on any governing or managing body of the aforementioned companies or entities, performing
such advisory or management servicés through the related organisation of material and human
resources. The aclivities expressly reserved by the Spanish Collective Investment Undertakings Law
and by the Spanish Securities Market Law for securities brokers and dealéers are excluded. These
activities may be wholly or partially carried on by the Company indirectly through the ownership of
shares or other equity interests in companies with an identical or similar company object.

The company will be able to partially or totally perform these activities, in an indirect manner, through the
ownership of shares or the interest in entities with analogous or identical corporate purpose,

Since 9 May 2014 the shares of the Company are listed on the Madrid stock exchange.

In view of the business activities carried on by the Company, it does nct have any environmental liability,
expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect fo its equity, financial position
or results, Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in the notes to the
financial statemenits.

Basis of presentation of the financial statements

21.

2.2,

23

Regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company

These financial statements were formally prepared by the directors in accordance with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Company, which consists of:

a) The Spanish Commercial Code and all other Spanish corporate law.

b) The Spanish National Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 and its industry
adaptations.

¢) The mandatory rules approved by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute in order to implement the
Spanish National Chart of Accounts and the relevant secondary legislation.

d) All other applicable Spanish accounting legistation.
Fair presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which were obtained from the Company's accounting records, are
presented in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company and,
in particular, with the accounting principles and rules contained therein and, accordingly, present fairly the
Company's equity, financial position, results of operations and cash flows for 2014. These financial
statements, which were formulated by the Company's directors, will be submitted for approval at the Annual
General Meeting, and it is considered that they will be approved without any changes.

The financial statements for 2013 were approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 22 April 2014.
Going concern principle of accounting

At 31 December 2014, the Company had a working capital deficiency of EUR 81,591 thousand (31
December 2013: working capital of EUR 123,872 thousand). This could be considered as a factor that

makes the going concern principle of accounting to be difficult to apply. However, there are various
mitigating factors, namely the following:



2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

» The working capital deficiency was generated as a result of a change in the Company's financial
structure. On the one hand, a new long-term loan was granted to a Group company and, on the
other, the Company acquired a creditor position in the cash-pooling arrangement with Group
companies. However, the cash-pooling arrangement establishes that it will be automatically
renewed unless one of the parties expressly requests otherwise (see Note 11.2).

« On 13 May 2014, the Company arranged a new syndicated credit facility with Société Généraie,
Spanish branch, as the agent bank, and other lender banks with an initial total limit of EUR 850,000
thousand, divided into two financing tranches. At 31 December 2014, the Company had not drawn
down the fult amount of the credit facility and, accordingly, could have direct access to the undrawn
amount of the aforementioned credit facility (see Note 8}

s The Company is the parent of a group of companies with solvency and liquidity, thereby receiving
dividends from its subsidiaries is possibie.

In this regard, the Company's directors prepared these financial statements in accordance with the going
concern principle of accounting, taking into consideration the financial resources available to the Company
and the operating;, commercial and, particularly, financial actions that the Company's shareholders might
undertake in the future.

Non-obligatory accounting principles applied

No non-obligatory accounting principles were applied. Also, the directors formally prepared these financial
statements taking into account all the obligatory accounting principles and standards with a significant effect
hereon.

All obligatory accounting principles were applied.
Key issues in relation to the measurement and estimation of uncertainty

In preparing the accompanying financial statements estimates were made by the Company's directors in
order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein. These
estimates relate basically to the following:

The assessment of possible impairment losses on certain assets (see Note 4.1).
The fair value of certain financial instruments {see Note 4.1).

The caleulation of certain provisions (see Note 4.5).

The recovery of deferred tax assets (see Note 8.5).

Corporate income tax (see Note 9).

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 2014 year-end, events
that take place in the future might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or downwards) in
coming years. Changes in accounting estimates would be applied prospectively.

Comparative information

The information relating to 2014 contained in these notes to the financial statements is presented for
comparison purposes with that relating to 2013.

Grouping of items

Certain items in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows are grouped together to facilitate their understanding; however, whenever the amounts involved are
material, the information is broken down in the related notes to the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

In 2014 there were no changes in accounting policies with respect to those applied in 2013.




2.9. Correction of errors

In preparing the accompanying financial statements no errors were detected that would have made it
necessary to restate the amounts included in the financial statements for 2013.

3. Distribution of profit

The proposed distribution of the profit for the year that the Company's directors will submit for approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting is as follows:

Thousands of euros

To dividends 13,607
Total 13,607

The Parent's Board of Directors will propound to the next Shareholder's Meeting the allocation of the result of
2014, which amounts EUR 13,607 thousand, to dividends. In addition, the Board of Directors will propose the
distribution of an extraordinary dividend with charge fo reserves amounting EUR 3,295 thousand. The resulting
amount will be EUR 0.13 per share for all outstanding shares (130,016,755 shares), thus the distribution of a
gross dividend of EUR 16,902 thousand.

Additionally, the Parent's Board of Directors will present in the next shareholder's meeting the following proposals
for its approval:

Allocation of the result from the year ended 31 December 2014, amounting EUR 13,607 thousand to
dividends.

Distribution of extraordinary dividends with charge to reserves amounting EUR 3,295 thousand.

Reduction of the legal reserve by EUR 8,731 thousand, to record it as voluntary reserves. It is noted that
the amount reduced is equivalent to an excess of 20% of the company's capital. Consequently, the legal
reserve will amount to EUR 2,600 thousand which is equivalent to the 20% of capital.

Compensation of prior year results amounting EUR 31,649 thousand, and compensation of the negative
reserve derived from the expenses related to the capital increase amounting EUR 5,863 thousand,
against an equivalent amount of share premium. Following such compensation, the total amount of
share premium will be EUR 313,525 thousand.

4.  Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies used by the Company in preparing its financial statements for 2014, in
accordance with the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, were as follows:

4.1. Financial instruments

Financial assets

The financial assets held by the Company are classified in the following categories:

a)

Loans and receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the rendering of services in
the ordinary course of the Company's business, or financial assets which, not having commercial
substance, are not equity instruments or derivatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are not
traded in an active market.



b) Equity investments in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled entities: Group companies
are deemed to be those related to the Company as a result of a relationship of control and associates
are companies over which the Company exercises significant influence. Jointly controlled entities
include companies over which, by virtue of an agreement, the Company exercises joint control with
ohe or more other venturers.

Financial assets are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration given, plus any direclly
attributable transaction costs.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost.

Investments in Group companies and associates and interests in jointly controlled entities are measured at
cost net, where appropriate, of any accumulated impairment losses. These losses are calculated as the
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and their recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows from the
investment. Unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount, it is based on the value of the equity
of the investee, adjusted by the amount of the unrealised gains existing at the date of measurement,
including goodwill.

in the case of equity investments in Group companies affording control over the subsidiary, since 1 January
2010 the fees paid to legal advisers and other professionals relating to the acquisition of the investment
have been recognised directly in profit or loss.

The Company has majority ownership interests in the share capital of certain companies. The financial
statements do not reflect the increases or decreases in the value of the Company's ownership interests
which would arise from the application of consolidation methods. It should also be noted that the Company
will prepare consolidated financial statements separately under Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

The effect of consolidation under International Financial Reporting Standards, in comparison with the
separate financial statements, would be to increase assets, revenue and profit by EUR 330,995 thousand,
EUR 1,572,312 thousand and EUR 10,224 thousand, respectively (2013: increase assets and revenue by
EUR 493,142 thousand and EUR 1,376,976 thousand, respectively, and reduce profit by EUR 283,394
thousand) and a reduction in reserves of EUR 379,193 thousands, respectively (reduction of EUR 97 454
thousand in 2013).

At least at each reporting date the Company tests financial assets not measured at fair value through profit
or loss for impairment. Objective evidence of impairment is considered to exist when the recoverable
amount of the financial asset is lower than its carrying amount. When this occurs, the impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset have also been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales or factoring of trade receivables in
which the Company does not retain any credit or interest rate risk.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include accounts payable by the Company that have arisen from the purchase of goods
or services in the normal course of the Company's business and those which, not having commercial
substance, cannot be classed as derivative financial instruments.

Accounts payable are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted by the
directly attributable transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when the obligations giving rise to them cease to exist.



Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, whenever there are indications of impairment, the Company tests iis
financial assets for impairment to determine whether the recoverable amourit of the assets has been
reduced to below their carrying amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Each year management prepares and updates its business plan by geographical market and line of
business. The main components of this plan are: operating income and expense projections, investment
projections and working capital projections. The business plan prepared by management includes the
budget for 2015 together with the projections for 2016-2019.

In order o calculate the recoverable amount of each asset the present value of its cash flows was
determined by using the business plan prepared by Company management. As a general rule, indefinite
useful life projections for a projected period of five years and a perpetuity rate of return from the sixth year
onwards were used. From the sixth year onwards it was considered that the cash flows generated by each
asset grow at a rate equal fo the growth of each industry in the geographical area in which it operates.

Therefore, the projections were prepared on the basis of past experience and of the best estimates
available at the date on which the impairment tests were carried out using the market information available.
The projections envisage growth in volume and improvements in the margins as a result of the organic
growth which management expects for the coming years. Consequently, the possible acquisitions or
miergers that might take place in the future were not taken into account in the projections and impairment
tests.

As a general rule, for the assets for which the need to perform an impairment test was not detected, a
sensitivity analysis was carried out on the main aggregates to verify that there are no indications of the need
to perform such tests. These sensitivity analyses consisted of increasing the discount rate by one half of a
percentage point and reducing the perpetuity growth rate by one half of a percentage point and, where
deemed necessary, a sensitivity analysis was performed on the increases expected in income and EBITDA
margins. Applying these changes to the assumptions similarly does not disclose any need to recognise
impairment losses on the financial assets.

The main average discount rates after tax used in each of the Company’s geographical areas were as
follows:

~ Country 2014 2013
Spain 6.7% - 6.8% 7.6% - 8%
Finland 7.4% 7.7%
Ireland 7.6% 8%
Denmark 7.9% 7.9%
The Netherlands 8.5% 8.9%
Germany 8.3% 8.3%
UK 8.7% 8.3%
Us 7% - 8.1% 6.9% - 8%
Canada 8.1% 7.6%
Australia 8% 8.4%
Malaysia _ 9.7% 9.6%

The projections are prepared on the basis of past experience and the best estimates available.



4.2

4.3.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company's activities expose it mainly to interest rate risk, due to the changes in the floating Euribor and
Libor GBP rate to which its long-term borrowings are tied. To hedge these exposures, the Company uses
derivative financial instruments in order to hedge interest rate risk (see Note 6), consisting exclusively of
swaps and IRSs.

The Company opted fo designate these instruments wherever possible (Le. when they meet the
requirements established in the Spanish National Chart of Accounts) as hedging instruments in hedging
relationships. Pursuant to the new Spanish National Chart of Accounts, a financial derivative only qualifies
for hedge accounting if it hedges one of the two following types of risk:

« Changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities due to fluctuations in the price, the interest rate to
which the position or balance to be hedged is subject (“fair value hedge”).

» (Changes in the estimated cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities, obligations and
highly probable forecast transactions (“¢ash flow hedge”).

The derivative must also effectively offset the exposure inherent in the hedged item or position throughout
the expected term of thé hedge, and there must be adequate documentation evidencing the specific
designation of the financial derivative to hedge certain balances or transactions and how this effective
hedge was intended to be achieved and measured.

Pursuant to the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, all financial instruments must be recognised as assets
or liabilities in the balance sheet at their fair value and any changes in fair value must be recognised in profit
and loss, unless, opting for hedge accounting, the effective portion of the hedging relationship must be
recognised in equity.

Hedge accounting, if considered to be such, is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognised in equity remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If a
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
transferred to net profit or loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2014 the sole financial derivative product held by the Company, is the one related to
treasury stock detailed in Note 4.12. In 2014 the Company did not arrange any other financial derivative
products either.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company's functional currency is the euro. Therefore, transactions in currencies other than the euro are
deemed to be “foreign currency transactions” and are recognised by applying the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to euros at the rates then prevailing. Any resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in the
income statement in the year in which they arise.

Corporate income tax

Tax expense (tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred tax expense
(deferred tax income).

The current corporate income tax expense is the amount payable by the Company as a result of corporate
income tax settlements for a given year. Tax credits and other tax benefits, excluding tax withholdings and
pre-payments, and tax loss carryforwards from prior years effectively offset in the current year reduce the
current corporate income tax expense.



4.4

4.5.

The deferred tax expense or income relates to the recognition and derecognition of deferred tax assets and
liabifities. These include temporary differences measured at the amount expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, and
tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. These amounts are measured at the corporate tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences except for those arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that does not affect neither the tax profit
ner the accounting profit and is not a business combination.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for those associated with
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates or interests in joint ventures, when the Company is .
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is considered probable that the Company will have
taxable profits in the future against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from transactions charged or credited directly to equity are also
recognised in equity.

The deferred tax assets recognised are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and the appropriate
adjustments are made to the extent that there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Also,
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that they will be recovered through future taxable profits.

The Company is the head of the Applus Group, which files consolidated tax returns as part of tax group
number 238/08, and the tax base for the year is determined as if individual returns were being filed, net of
such tax credits and tax relief as might be deductible under the consolidated tax regime. The Company
manages the accounts receivable or payable that arise in this connection.

The Spanish consclidated tax group is comprised by the following companies:

Companies
Applus Services S AL LGAI Technologicat Center, S.A.
Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. Apptus Energy, S.1.
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. Ringal Invest, S.L.
Applus Norcontrol, S.L.U. Applus Automotive Services, S.L.1.
Novotec Consultores S.A.U. Applus Tteuve Technology, S.L.U.

Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods
and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, net of discounts and taxes.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting period, provided the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably.

Interest revenue from financial assets is récognised using the effective interest method and dividend
revenue is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established. Interest and
dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of acquisition are recognised as revenue.

Provisions and contingencies

When preparing the financial statements the Company's directors made a distinction between:



4.7.

4.8.

1. Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations arising from past events with respect to which
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying eccnomic benefits that is uncertain as to its
amount and/or timing will be required to settle the obligations; and

2. Contingent habilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
Company's control.

The financial statements inciude all the provisions with respect to which it is considered that it is more likely
than not that the obligation will have to be settled. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial
statements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow in settlement is considered fo be
remote.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount required to settle
or transfer the obligation, taking into account the information available on the event and its consequences.
Where discounting is used, adjustments made to provisions are recognised as interest cost on an accrual
basis.

. Termination benefits

Under current legislation, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to employees terminated
under certain conditions. Therefore, termination benefits that can be reasonably quantified are recognised
as an expense in the year in which the decision to terminate the employment relationship is taken and a
valid expectation regarding termination is created on the part of third parties.

The accompanying financial statements do not include any significant provision in this connection, since no
situations of this nature are expected to arise.

Environmental assets and liabilities

Environmental assets are deemed to be assets used on a lasting basis in the Company's operations whose
main purpose is to minimise environmental impact and protect and improve the environment, including the
reduction or efimination of future pollution.

Because of their nature, the Company's business activities do not have a significant environmental impact.

Transactions with Group companies, associates and related companies

For the purposes of the presentation of the financial statements, Group companies are considered to be
those entities over which the Company directly or indirectly controls the financial and operating policies,
exercises power over the relevant activities, maintains exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
involvement with the investee; and the ability fo use power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor's returns. This is generally because it holds more than 50% of the voting power.

Associates are companies over which the Company is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control or joint control. Normally this capacity exists because the Group holds -directly or indirectly- 20% or
more of the voting power of the subsidiary.

For the purposes of the information in this section, related parties are considered to be:

» The significant shareholders of the Company, understood to be shareholders holding directly or
indirectly 3% or more of the shares, and shareholders which, without being significant, have exercised
the power to propose the appointment of a member of the Board of Directors.

« The directors and senior executives of any Applus Group company, as well close members of those

persons' family. "Director” means a member of the Board of Directors and "senior executive” means
persons reperting directly tc the Board or to the CEO of the Group.
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The Company performs all its transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis. Also, the fransfer
prices are adequately supported and, therefore, the Company's directors consider that there are no material
risks in this connection that might give rise to significant liabilities in the future.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially ail the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Finance leases

In finance leases in which the Company acts as the lessee, the cost of the leased assets is presented in the
balance sheet, based on the nature of the leased asset, and, simultaneously, a liability is recognised for the
same amount. This amount wiil be the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value, at
the inception of the lease, of the agreed minimum lease payments, including the price of the purchase
option when it is reasonably certain that it will be exercised. The minimum lease payments do not include
contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to be paid by and reimbursed to the lessor. The total finance
charges arising under the lease are allocated to the income statement for the year in which they are
incurred using the effective interest method. Contingent rent is recognised as an expense for the period in
which it is incurred.

Leased assets are depreciated, based on their nature, using similar criteria to those applied fo the items of
property, plant and equipment that are owned.

At 31 December 2014 or 2013, the Company did not have any finance leases.

Operating leases

Lease income and expenses from operating leases are recognised in income on an accrual basis.

A payment made on entering inte or acquiring a leasehold that is accounted for as an operating lease
represents prepaid lease payments that are amortised over the lease term in accordance with the pattern of

benefits provided.

The Company only holds certain items of transport equipmeni under operating leases, and the related
expense incurred in 2014 amounted to EUR 26 thousand (2013: EUR 26 thousand).

4.10. Current/Non-current classification

Current assets are assets associated with the normal operating cycle, which in general is considered to be
one year; cther assets which are expected to mature, be disposed of or be realised within tweive months
from the end of the reporting period; financial assets held for trading, except for financial derivatives that will
be settied in a period exceeding one year; and cash and cash equivalents. Assets that do not meet these
requirements are classified as non-current assets.

Similarly, current liabilities are liabilities associated with the normal operating cycle, financial liabilities held
for trading, except for financial derivatives that will be setiled in a period exceeding one year; and, in
general, all obligations that will mature or be extinguished at short term. All other liabilities are classified as
non-current liabilities.

4.11. Employee benefit obligations

The Company has established with its key personnel specific remuneration plans, with the following
characteristics:

a) Annual varigble remuneration for certain Company personnel conditional upon the achievement of
certain targets for 2014.
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b} Variable three-yearly remuneration for certain executives of the Company subject fo the achievement
by the Group of certain financial aggregates in 2014, 2015 and 2016 (see Note 11.3).

¢} Special incentive plan granted to two senior executives and the executive director of the Company that
consists of conferring RSU's (convertibles in Company shares) in favour of the senior executive based
on a continuing service for a determined period of time. The first delivery of shares will be made in May
2015 (see Notes 11.3).

4.12. Treasury shares

In October 2014 the Company arranged an equity swap with a bank to cover the acquisition cost of 550,000
treasury shares, of which a portion are to be delivered to Group executives in May 2015 (see Notes 6 and
7.5). Since such contract is an equity instrument the accounting principles described in Note 4.1, do not

apply.

4.13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to the
Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares. outstanding in the year, excluding the average
number of shares of the Parent held by the Group companies.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
adjusted by the effect attributable to the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all the potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares of the Company. Far these purposes, it is considered that the shares are converted at the beginning
of the year or at the date of issue of the potential ordinary shares, if the latter were issued during the current
year.

Financial assets {(non-current and current)

5.1. Non-current financial assets

The changes in "Non-Current Financial Assets” in the balance sheet in 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in
thousands of euros):

2014
Change in
01/01/14 Acquisitions Reductions exchange 31/12/14
rate

Equity investments in Group companies, jointly

controlled entities and associates (Appendix I) 1,105,404 1,330 B - 1,106,734
Loans to Group companies (Note 11.2) 227,241 207,312 (3,384) 2,072 433,241
Other financial assets (Notes 11.3) 1,160 - {1,100) - -

Total 1,333,745 208,642 (4,484) 2,072 1,539,975
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2013

Change in
01/01/13 Acquisitions | Reductions exchange 3112113
rate

Equity investments in Group companies,

jointly controlled entities and associates 1,105,404 - - - 1,105,404
{Appendix I}

Loans to Group companies (Note 11.2) 168,821 62,842 (3,304) {1,118) 227,241
Other financial assets (Note 11.3) _ 1,100 - - _ - 1,100
Total 1,275,325 62,842 (3,304) (1,118) 1,333,745

Equity investmenis in Group companies, jointly confrolled entities and associatés:

On 29 November 2007, the Company acquired all the shares of Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. and
its subsidiaries.

On 21 December 2012, the shareholders increased the Company's share capital by EUR 238,765 through
the issuance of 238,764,894 shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 7,235 thousand,
i.e. EUR 0.0303033 per share. Both the shares and the share premium were fully subscribed and paid by
Azul Holding, $.C.A. through the non-monetary contribution of shares representing all the share capital of
Azul Holding 2, S.a r.l. valued at EUR 246,000 thousand. Since this was a fransaction with Group
companies, the Company, as provided for in the Spanish National Chart of Accounts approved by Royal
Decree 1514/2007, recognised the investment at the carrying amount at which Azul Holding, S.C.A. had
recognised its investment in Azul Holding 2 S.a r.l., which amounted to EUR 102,213 thousand, giving rise
o negative reserves of EUR 143,787 thousand (see Note 7).

None of the subsidiaries are listed on the stock market.
The subsidiaries and associates directly and indirectly owned by the Company are shown in Appendix .

Leoans to Group companies:

"Loans to Group Companies” in 2014 and 2013 related to:

¢« A loan granted by the Company on 29 November 2007 to Applus Servicios Tecnologicos, S.L.U.
The loan matures on 29 November 2019 and earns interest at a fixed market rate. The balance
receivable from Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. at 31 December 2014 amounted to EUR
87,715 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 87,715 thousand).

« A loan of GBP 20,500 thousand granted by the Company on 21 April 2008 to Applus Servicios
Tecnoidgicos, S.L.U., which was increased to GBP 24,964 thousand on 17 December 2008. The
loan is repayable at one time in 2019 and earns annual interest at 6-month Libor plus a market
spread. The balance receivable at 31 December 2014 amounted to EUR 31,452 thousand (2013:
EUR 29,586 thousand).

+ A loan granted by the Company on 29 July 2011 to Libertytown USA Finco, Inc. The loan is
repayable at one time on 31 December 2020 and eams interest at a market rate. The balance
receivable at both 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounted to USD 2,715 thousand (31 December
2014: EUR 2,179 thousand, 31 December 2013: EUR 1,973 thousand, respectively).

*» On 1 September 2013, the subsidiary Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. was subrogated to
the loan granted by the Company to Réntgen Technische Dienst Holding B.V. on 11 July 2011 for
an amount of EUR 10,862 thousand. The afcrementioned loan is repayable at one time on 31
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December 2020 and earns interest at a market rate. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the balance
payable was EUR 10,863 thousand.

» Aloan of EUR 62,480 thousand granted by the Company on 19 December 2013 to Applus lteuve
Technology, S.L.U. The loan is repayabie at one time on 29 November 2019 and earns annual
interest at a fixed market rate. The balance receivable at both 31 December 2014 and 2013
amounted to EUR 62,480 thousand.

* A loan of EUR 188,059 thousand granted by the Company to Arctosa Molding B.V. on 30 July
2014. The loan is repayable in a single instalment on 13 May 2019 so it is to be recovered in full at
31 December 2014 and earns interest at the same rate as that established in Facility A (see Note
8) plus a market spread.

» Accounis receivable from various Group companies arising from the Company's inclusion as the
head of the consolidated tax group, amounting to EUR 50,493 thousand (2013; EUR 34,624
thousand) (see Notes 4.3. and 11.2.). In 2014 there were additions of EUR 19,253 thousand and
reductions of EUR 3,384 thousand as a result of the filing of conselidated tax returns.

Other financial assets:

At 31 December 2013, the Company recogniséd as a non-current asset a loan of EUR 1,100 thousand
granted to a member of the Board of Directors (see Note 11.3). On 30 May 2014, the loan was repaid early.

5.2. Current financial assets and current investments in Group companies and associates

5.5

54.

The detail of the balances of “Current Financial Assets" and "Current Investments in Group Companies and
Associates” at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Categories 31/12/14 31112113
Loans to and receivables from Group companies ' - 52,379
Short-term interest receivable from Group conpanies 19,404 34,528
Account receivable relating to dividends 6,400 -
Total current investments in Group companies and associates 25,304 86,907
(Note 11.2)

Cash and cash equivalents

"Cash and Cash Equivalents" includes ail the cash recognised in current accounts amounted to EUR 102
thousand and demand deposits which are convertible into cash and unrestricted and, when arranged,
matured in less than three months amounted to EUR 921 thousand. The total balance at 31 December 2014
amounted to EUR 1,023 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 46,147 thousand).

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, no amount recognised under "Cash and Cash Equivalents” had been
pledged.

Information on the nature and level of risk of financial instruments

The Company's financial risk management is centralised in the Financial Department of the Applus Group,
which has established the mechanisms required to control exposure to interest rate and exchange rate
fluctuations and credit and liquidity risk. The main financial risks affecting the Company are as follows:

a) Credit risk:

fn general, the Company holds its cash and cash equivalents at banks with high credit ratings.
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The accounts receivable at 31 December 2014 and 2013 relate mainly to balances with Group companies
for the provision of services by the Company.

The Company directors consider that there was no significant credit rigsk at 31 December 2014 and 2013,

by Liquidity risk:

The Company, for the purpose of ensuring fiquidity and enabling it to meet all the payment obligations
arising from its business activities, has the cash and cash equivalents disclosed in its balance sheet,
together with credit and financing facilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk prudently by maintaining sufficient cash, current financial assets and
marketable securities and through the availability of financing in the form of committed credit facilities and
sufficient capacity to settle market positions.

c) Market risk:

Both the Company’s cash and its bank borrowings are exposed to interest rate risk, which could have an
adverse effect on financial profit or loss and cash flows. Accordingly, this risk is considered o be significant

and is therefore subject to close, ongoing moitoting by Company management.

In addition, a portion of the financial debt and certain balances with Group companies are in foreign
currency.

Therefare, the main market risks to which the Company is exposed are interest rate and foreign currency
risk.

c.1) Interest rate risk:

The detail of the average interest rate and of the average financial debt drawn dowit is as follows:

2014 2013
Average interest rate 3.31% 3.88%
Average financial debt drawn down (thousands of euros) 614,577 822,595

On the basis of the financial debt drawn down, the impact on borrowing costs of a change of half a point in
the average interest rate would be as follows:;

2014 2013
-0.50%

(3,073)

0.50%
3.066

-0.50%
(3,066)

0.50%
3,073

Change in interest rate

Change in borrowing costs (thousands of euros)

c.2) Foreign currency risk:

The financial debt (syndicated loan) subject to foreign currency risk is denominated only in pounds sterling
and is as follows:

_ 2014 2012
Financial debt subject to foreign currency risk (thousands of euros) 24,453 23,763
Average financial debt drawn down subject to foreign currency risk
(thousands of euros) 24,852 24,104
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On the basis of the financial debt in foreign currency, the impact on borrowing costs of a change of half a
point in the average exchange rate would be as follows:

2014 2013
Change in exchange rate 0.50% | -0.50% 0.50% | -0.50%
Change in borrowing costs (thousands of euros) 124 - (124) 120 (120)
6. Derivative financial instruments
The Company only arranges OTC derivative financial instruments with Spanish and international banks with
high credit ratings.
The objective of these interest rate hedges was to mitigate, by arranging fixed-for-floating interest rate
swaps, the fluctuations in cash outflows relating to payments tied to floating interest rates (Euribor) on the
Company's borrowings.
In October 2014 the Company arranged an equity swap with a bank to hedge the acquisition cost of
550,000 treasury shares, of which a portion of these shares, the Company must bestow to certain
executives. At 31 December 2014, this agreement had a fair value of EUR 5,407 thousand and maturity on
30 April 2015, On 9 May 2015, the Company must confer part of the aforementioned shares to certain
executives (see Notes 4.12 and 7.5).
7. Equity and shareholders’ equity
7.1. Share capital

The Company was incorperated on 5 July 2007 with a share capital of EUR 3,100, divided into 3,100 equal,
cumuliative and indivisible fully subscribed and paid shares of EUR 1 par value each fully subscribed and
paid by Azul Holding, S.C.A.

On 28 November 2007, the Company increased share capital by EUR 12,312,500 through the issuance of
12,312,500 shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 110,812,500, i.e. EUR 9 per
share. The shares and the share premium were fully subscribed and paid by Azul Holding, S.C A. through a
monetary contribution.

On 29 December 2011, the Company increased its share capital by EUR 20,000 thousand through the
issuance of 20 million new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 180,000
thousand, i.e. EUR 9 per share. This capital increase was carried out by converting into capital a portion of
the participating loan that Azul Finance, S.a r.l. had granted to the Company.

On 21 December 2012, the shareholders increased the Company's share capital by EUR 238,765 thousand
through the issuance of 238,764,894 shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 7,235
thousand, i.e. EUR 0.0303033 per share. Both the shares and the share premium were fully subscribed and
paid by Azul Holding, S.C.A. through the non-monetary contribution of shares representing all of the share
capital of Azul Holding 2, S.a r.l. valued at EUR 246,000 thousand.

The aforementioned non-monetary contribution qualified for taxation under the special tax regime for
mergers, spin-offs, asset contributions, security exchanges and changes of registered office of a European
company or a European Cooperative Society from one EU Member State to another provided for in Chapter
VIl of Title VIl of Spanish Legislative Royal-Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, approving the Consolidated
Spanish Corporation Tax Law, as a security exchange defined in Articles 83.5 and 87.

The Company recognised the investment at the carrying amount at which Azul Holding, S.C.A. had
recognised the investment in Azul Holding 2 S.4 r.l., which amounted to EUR 102,213 thousand, thereby
giving rise to negative reserves of EUR 143,787 thousand.

16



Also, on 21 December 2012 the Company increased share capital by EUR 330,975 thousand through the
issuance of 330,975,863 new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 10,029
thousand, i.e. EUR 0.0303033 per share. This capital increase was carried out by converting inte capital a
portion of the participating loan that Azul Finance, 8.4 r.l. had granted to the Company.

On 20 December 2013, the Company increased its share capital by EUR 53,906 thousand through the
issuance of 53,906,285 new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share prémium of EUR 52,926
thousand, i.e. EUR 0.9818 per share. This capital increase was carried out by converting into capital the
outstanding amount of EUR 106,832 thousand of the participating loan that Azul Finance, S.a r.l. had
granted to the Company.

On 4 April 2014, the shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting resolved unanimously to
reduce capital by EUR 645,029,932 through the redemption and writing-off of ordinary shares of EUR 1 par
value each of which 398,112,474 were held by Azul Finance, S.a rl. and 246,917,458 by Azul Holding,
S.C.A., respectively, with a charge to voluntary reserves. Also, on that sale date the Company's Annual
General Meeting resolved unanimously to rediice the par value of each outstanding share to EUR 0.10,
leaving the share capital at EUR 10,932,710 represented by 109,327,100 shares.

On 7 May 2014, the Board of Directors, acting under powers delegated from the Company's General
Meeting of 25 March 2014, approved unanimously the public offering of subscription and sale of shares in
the Spanish Stock Exchange agreeing with the following:

1. Execution of a capital increase through a monetary contribution by issuing 20,689,655 new shares at
a EUR 0.10 par value each and a share premium of EUR 14.40 per share, with the same rights and
obligations as the previously existing shares. The total amount disbursed in capital and share
premium is EUR 300 million.

2. Set the number of shares subject to the public offering: The 20,689,655 new shares will be offered
as part of the sale and subscription offering, to qualified investors through the Global Coordinating
Entities, having Blue Finance, S.a rl. and Blue Holding S.C.A. (the “Sharzholders sellers”)
renounced expressly and individually the right to subscribe for them. Additionally, 55,172,414
existing shares of Blue Finance S.a.r.| will be offered as part of the sale and subscription offer to
qualified investors through the Global Coordinating Entities. Additionally, it is agreed to set the
volume of the purchase option (over-allotment option) at 7,586,207 shares to be conferred by Blue
Finance S.ar.l.

3. Set the price of the sale and subscription offer at EUR 14.50 per share.

On 9 May 2014, the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (CNMV) allowed the total amount of
the Company’s shares (130,018,755 shares) to trade on the Stock Exchange.

The shares subject to the initial public offering (75,862,069 shares) were sold entirely in the stock market for
a price of EUR 14.50 and on 20 May 2014, the Global Coordinating Entities exercised the option granted by
Azul Finance, S.arl. to purchase 7,586,207 shares for a price of EUR 14.50 per share.

Therefore, at 31 December 2014, the Company share capital was represented by 130,016,755 fully
subscribed and paid ordinary shares of EUR 0.10 par value each.

Per the notifications of the number of shares submitted to the Spanish National Securities Market
Commission (CNMV), the following shareholders owned significant direct and indirect interests in the
Company's share capital (more than 3% of share capital) at 31 December 2014:

Compan % ownership
ompany 3171272014
CEP III Participations, S.a r.1, SICAR 35.50%
GIC Private Limited 6.15%
Ameriprise Financial, INC 3.85%
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7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

The Company's directors are not aware of any other ownership interests of 3% or more of the share capital or
voting rights of the Company, or of any lower ownership interests that might permit the holder to exercise a
significant influence over the Company.

Share premium

The balance of “Share Premium” arose originally as a result of the capital increase carried out on 29
November 2007 with a share premium of 8.75% (EUR 110,813 thousand).

In 2011 the share premium increased by EUR 180,000 thousand (EUR 9 per share) due fo the capital
increase through the conversion of a portion of the aforementioned participating loan into capital.

Also, in 2012 the share premium increased by EUR 17,264 thousand (EUR 0.03 per share), due to the
capital increases indicated in Note 7.1.

Effective from 20 December 2013, as a result of the capital increase carried out in 2013, the share premium
increased by EUR 52,926 thousand (EUR 0.9818 per share) through the conversion into capital of a portion
of the participating loan granted by Azul Finance, S.a r.l. and the concomitant issuance of 53,806 thousand
new shares.

On 19 December 2013, the share premium was reduced by EUR 308,077 thousand with a charge to
reserves and prior year's losses of EUR 143,787 thousand and EUR 164,290 thousand, respectively.

Lastly, on 7 May 2014, the Board of Directors, acting under powers defegated from the Company’s Annual
General Meeting on 25 March 2014, unanimously resoived to launch an initial public offering of new shares.
At that date the Company issued 20,689,655 new shares of EUR 0.10 par value each with a share premium
of EUR 14.40 per share; all with the same rights and obligations as the existing shares. This transaction
gave rise 0 the recognition of a share premium of EUR 297,931 thousand.

Legal reserve

Under the Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law, the Company must transfer 10% of net profit for each
year to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital. The legal
reserve can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below
10% of the increased share capital amount. Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital,
it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose.

At 31 December 2014, the Company has a legal reserve amounting to EUR 11,332 thousands.
Other reserves

On 4 April 2014, share capital was reduced by EUR 645,030 thousand which were taken {o voluntary
reserves. This reserve is unavailable.

Additionally, as mentioned in Note 7.1, on 7 May 2014, the initial public offering of new shares was agreed
upon, causing the Company to incur issuance costs of EUR 5,683 thousand net of tax effect, recognised in
equity as a reduction of the Company's reserves.

Treasury shares
In October 2014 the Company signed an equity swap agreement with a financial institution to set the price
for the acquisition of 550,000 shares of the Applus Group that the Company will get on 30 April 2015. The

set price is EUR 5,407 thousand, amount that has been registered at 31 December 2014 in the “treasury
shares” epigraph of the attached Balance Sheet.

Profit/{Loss) per share

The profit or loss per share is calculated on the basis of the loss attributable to the shareholders of the
Company divided by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the year. At 31 December 2014
and 2013 the loss per share was as follows:
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2014 2013

Number of shares 130,016,755 655,962,642
Average number of shares 122.817.889 603,828,618
Consolidated net loss attributable to the Company (thousands of euros) 13,607 113,315
Number of treasury shares 550,000 -
Number of shares outstanding 130,016,755 655,962,642
Loss per share (in euros per share)

- Basic 0.111 0.188

- Diluted 0.111 0.188

There are no financial instruments that could dilute the loss per share.

8. Non-current and current payables

The detail of “Non-Current Payables® and “Current Payables” is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Thousands of curos
Categories Bank borrowings

31/12/14 | 31/12/13
Long-term loans 456,338 813,957
Total non-current payables 496,338 | 813,957
Short-term loans - 4,788
Other short-term interest 480 135
Treasury shares (Note 7) 5,407 -
Total current payables 5,887 4,923

On 27 November 2007, the Company arranged a syndicated loan with Société Générale, London Branch,
as the agent bank, and Barclays Capital, Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank, AG, London Branch;
Catalunya Caixa; Caixa Bank; Bankia; Calyon, Sucursal en Espaiia; Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft;
Landsbanki Islands h.f. and Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., as the participating lenders, for a total maximum
amount of EUR 1,085,000 thousand, against which at 31 December 2013 the Group had drawn down EUR
1,074,730 thousand and the Company had drawn down EUR 818,745 thousand divided into various
different limits and financing tranches.

On 21 November 2012, the Company refinanced its bank borrowings, renegotiating the terms and
conditions of 95% of the Capex Facility and 85% of the Revoiving Facility, extending the term of both
tranches by two years to 25 May 2016 and establishing a single maturity at the end of the related term,
which also applies to the Capex Facility.

On 13 May 2014, the Company repaid early the amount drawn down of the loan granted on 27 November
2007 and refinanced on 21 November 2012. On that same date the Company then arranged a new
syndicated loan with Société Générale, Spanish branch, as the agent bank and with Caixabank, S.A., BNP
Paribas Fortis S.A. N.V., Banco Santander, S.A., Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, sucursal
Espafia, RBC Capital Markets {Royal Bank of Canada}, London Branch, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Dublin
Limited, Mizuho Bank Lid., The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid., UBS Limited, J.P. Morgan Limited and
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Citigroup Global Markets Limited as the subscribing banks, for a total initial limit of EUR 850,000 thousand,

divided into two financing tranches. The two franches have a single maturity on 13 May 2019.

The financial structure of the syndicated loan is as follows:

2014
Thousands of euros
Drawn down | Drawn down by
Tranche Limit + capitalized the Group Maturity
Facility A 700,000 466,324 695,733 13/05/2019
Facility B 150,000 35,000 35,000 13/05/2019
Effect of exchange rate changes - 832 23,412
Accrued interest - 480 731
Debt arrangement expenses = {5,818) {7,271)
Total 850,000 496,818 747,605
2013
Thousands of euros
Drawn down by | Drawn down by
Tranche Group limit | the Company at the Group at Maturity
3171213 31/12/13
Senior B 610,000 428,160 610,000 29/05/16
Second Lien Facility (Senior D) 100,000 100,000 100,000 29/05/17
Revolving Facility 1 16,500 3,080 5,281 20/11/14
Revolving Facility 2 64,500 18,920 32,441 25/05/16
Capex Facility 1 5,800 1,649 2,900 29/05/14 - 29/11/14
Capex Facility 2 117,750 69,051 $17,750 25/05/16
Mezzanine Facility 150,000 150,000 150,000 29/11/17
{:ntc_re_:st added to principal — Mezzanine 53,539 53,539
acility
Efiect of exchange rate changes (876) 8,665
Debt arrangement expenses (4,778) (5,846)
Total 1,058,550 818,745 1,074,730

Within the Facility A tranche of EUR 700 million, at 31 December 2014, the Company had drawn down a
portion of the nominal amount in pounds sterling (GBP 20 million equal to approximately EUR 24 million at
31 December 2014) and another portion of the nominal amount in euros (EUR 442 million).

The amount drawn down of EUR 35 million from the Facility B tranche, which totals EUR 150 million, is
entirely in euros at 31 December 2014.

The new syndicated loan agreement establishes the achievement of a financial ratio - consolidated net
financial debt/consolidated EBITDA - that must not exceed certain values set for each six-month period
throughout the term of the loan, with the ratio becoming lower than 4 from 2016 onwards. At 31 December
2014, the aforementioned ratic had to be lower than 4.50. The actual ratio based on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2014 is 3.12.

The Company’s directors expect the aforementioned financiai ratio to be achieved in the coming years.
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The Company also has certain obligations under the financing agreement which relate mainly to disclosure
requirements concerning its financial statements and business plans; positive undertakings to carry out
certain actions, such as guaranteeing the accounting closes, guaranteeing compliance with the legislation in
force, etc. and negative undertakings not to perform certain transactions without the lender's consent, such
as cerfain mergers, changes of business activity or certain assignments.

Shares of certain Company subsidiaries have been pledged fo secure the aforementioned loan.

The interest rate of the loan is Euribor (for tranches in Euros) / Libor (for tranches in foreign currencies) and
a spread depending on the level of debt, which currently stands at 2.25 percentage points.

The detail, by maturity, of “Non-Current Payables” and “Current Payables® is as follows (in thousands of
euros);

2014
2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | Total
Bank borrowings - - - - 496,338 | 496,338
Short-term interest 480 - - - - 480
Treasury shares (see Note 6) 5,407 - - - - 5,407
Total _ 5,887 - - - 496,338 | 502,225
2013
2017 and
2014 2015 2016 }subsequent| Total
. _ years
Bank borrowings 4,788 - 511,353 302,604 | 818,745
Short-term interest 135 - - - 135
Total 4,923 - 511,353 302,604 818,880
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9

. __Tax matters

9.1. Tax receivables and payables

2014

The detail of the current and non-current tax receivables and payables at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as
follows (in thousands of euros}):

2013

Tax receivables Tax payables
Non-current balances (Note 9.5):
Deferred tax assets 18,701 -
Tax loss carryforwards 27,902 -
Tax credit carryforwards 4,356 -
Total non-current balances 50,959 -
Current balances:
Accrued social security taxes payable - 10
VAT payable 51 2,205
Personal income tax withholdings payable - 286
Tax withholdings and prepayments 6,425 -
Total current balances 6,476 2,501
Tax receivables Tax payables
Non-current balances (Note 9.5):
Deferred tax assets 18,481 -
Tax loss carryforwards 37,210 -
Total non-current balances 55,691 -
Current balances:
Accrued social security taxes payable - 8
VAT payable - 204
Personal income tax withholdings payable - 178
Tax withholdings and prepayments 5,199 -
Other tax receivables and payables 8 -
Total current balances 5207 399




9.2.

9.3.

Reconciliation of the accounting profit (loss) to the taxable profit (tax loss)

The reconciliation of the accounting profit (loss) to the taxable profit (tax loss) for corporate income tax
purposes is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2014 2013
Accounting profit (loss) before tax 2,549 130,456
Permanent differences (28.328) (179,341)
Temporary differences (13,794) 26,815
Tax loss (39,573) (22,070
Taxable profits of subsidiaries 51,327 46,907
Tax losses of subsidiaries ' (10,337) (1,774)
Tax base before tax consolidation adjustiments 1,417 _ 23,063
Offset of tax losses (354) (5,766)
Taxable profit 1,063 17,298
Tax charge at 30% _ 319 5,189
Offset of tax losses and tax credits of subsidiaries (319 {5,189)
Tax withholdings and prepayments 1,351 5,199
Corporate Income tax refundable 1,351 5,199

The permanent differences relate mainly o the application of Article 30.6 of the Consolidated Spanish
Corporate income Tax Law, whereby the dividends received from subsidiaries aré tax deductible. In this
case, a deduction was taken for the dividend of EUR 28,331 thousand distributed by the subsidiary Applus
Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.1..U., as described in Notg 11.1.

The temporary differences relate mainly to the amount of prior years' deductible borrowing costs amounting
to EUR 2,698'th0usand recognised in 2014 pursuant to Royal Decree-Law 12/2012, of 30 March, to non-
tax-deductible provisions amounting to EUR 2,978 thousand and to expenses of EUR 8,118 thousand
recognised directly in equity (see Note 7.4).

Reconciliation of the accounting profit {loss} to the corporate income tax expense (benefit)

The recongciliation of the accounting profit (loss) to the corporate income tax expense (benefit) for 2014 and
2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2014 2013

Accounting profit (loss) before tax 2,549 130,456
Permanent differences (28,328) (179,341
Taxable accounting loss (25,779) (48,885)
Tax charge at 30% (7,734) (14,666)
Adjustments to and derecognition of tax credits 1,032 31,807
Deductions {4,356) -

SrrTrra—— e B
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94

9.5.

The adjustments and derecognition of tax assets are due mainly to the resolution of tax assessments
received on 24 July 2014 and signed on an uncontested basis by the Company and to the entry into force of
the new Law 27/2014, of 27 November, which provides for, inter alia, the lowering of the standard Spanish
corporate income tax rate to 28% in 2015 and to 25% in 2016 {see Note 9.7).

Also, in 2014 the Company recognised domestic double taxation tax credits amounting to EUR 4,356
thousand (see Note 9.5).

Breakdown of corporate income tax benefit (expense)

The breakdown of the corporate income tax (benefit) expense is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2014 2013

Current tax:
Continuing operations (6,326) 2,124
Discontinued opetations - -
Deferred tax:
Continuing operations (4,732) 15,017
Discontinued operations - -
Total tax expense (benefit) (11,058) 17,141

Deferred tax assets recognised

The deferred fax assefs indicated above were recognised because the Company’s directors considered
that, based on their best estimate of thé Company's future earnings, including certain tax planning
measures, it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Pursuant to the new tax legislation, namely Law 27/2014, of 27 November 2014, the Spanish companies do
not have any time [imit for offsetting the aforementioned tax losses. However, for 2016, a general limitation
of 60% of the tax base for the offset of tax losses is established and of 70% from 2017 onwards.

However, the recognition of the tax assets for accounting purposes took into consideration a specified time
horizon. In this regard, at 31 December 2014 the fax assets that continued to be recognised were those
which the Company's directors considered would be probably offset over a time period of less than ten
years through the obtainment of sufficient future profits, taking into account for the recovery of the tax assets
the criteria established in Law 27/2014, of 27 November 2014.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the last years for deduction of the tax loss carryforwards recognised in the
accompanying balance sheet were as follows:

2014
_ Thousands of euros
Tax loss Tax loss Consolidated
Tax asset
carryforwards - carryforwards - tax loss recoonised
Company Group carryforwards en
2009 40,366 (3,270) 37,096 9,274
2010 51,715 (5,475) 46,240 11,560
2011 34,230 {5,958) 28,272 7,068
Total 126,311 (14,703) 111,608 27,902
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9.6.

2013

Thousands of euros
Tax loss. Tax loss Consolidated
carryforwards - carryforwards - tax loss Tax asset
Company Group carryforwards recognised
2009 50,673 (3,280) 47,393 14,218
2010 51,324 {7,329) 43,995 13,199
2011 37,280 {4,637) 32,643 9,793
Total 139,277 (15,246) 124,031 37,210

"Deferred Tax Assets" on the asset side of the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December 2014 includes
the deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 16,510 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 17,185 thousand)
relating to finance costs that were not tax-deductible in 2014 and 2013 because the financial loss exceeded
30% of the profit from operations of the consolidated tax group, as provided for in Royal Decree-Law
12/2012, of March 30. This heading also includes other sundry positive temporary differences amounting to
EUR 2,192 thousand in 2014 and EUR 1,296 thousand in 2013.

In 2014 the Company recognised domestic double taxation tax credits for 2014 amounting to EUR 4,356
thousand. The factors taken into consideration for the recognition of these tax credits and also for retaining
tax loss carryforwards at 31 December 2014 (the future recoverability of which is supported), were as
follows:

 The business plan of the Company and its Spanish subsidiaries, approved by management,
envisages the same trend of growth in earnings experienced to date for 2015 and subsequent
years, which eamnings will be sufficient to offset all the tax losses over the next 7 years, taking into
consideration the new Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014, of 27 November.

+ In 2014 the consolidated Group in Spain obtained taxable incomie of EUR 1,417 thousand (2013;
EUR 34,259 thousand) which enabled it to offset unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting to
EUR 354 thousand in 2014 (2013: EUR 10,277 thousand).

+ A mandate was issued by the Board of Directors to the Company's management to implement ail
the measures envisaged in the business plan and it is considered highly probable that it wilt be met
in light of the experience of prior years and the Company's performance in the first two months of
2015.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Company did not recognise certain deferred tax assets in the accompanying balance sheet because it
considered that the requirements in the applicable accounting legislation regarding the probability of their
future recoverability were not met.

The detail of the undeducted tax losses not recognised in the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December
2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2014
Thousands of euros
Consolidated
Undeducted tax Undeducted tax tax group Tax assets not
losses - Company losses - Group uoused tax recognised
losses
2007 5,077 - 5,077 1,269
Total 5,077 - 5,077 1,269
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2013

Thousands of euros
Consolidated
Undeducted tax Undeducted tax tax group Tax assets not
losses - Company losses - Group unused tax recognised
losses
2007 6,111 - 6,111 1,833
2008 22,337 (15,745) 6,592 1,978
2009 33,094 - 33,094 9,928
2010 13,014 - 13,014 3,904
Total 74,556 (15,745) 58,811 17,643

The reduction in the tax bases not recognised in the accompanying balance sheet is a result of the tax
assessments signed on an uncontested basis (see Note 2.7).

The detail of the tax credits not recognised in the accompanying balance sheets at 31 December 2014 and
2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Year Description 31/12/14 31/12/13
2008 Incentive deduction for certain activities 89 89
2009 Incentive deduction for certain activities 977 977
2010 Incentive deduction for certain activities 1,033 1,033
2011 Incentive deduction for certain activities 1,118 1,118
2012 Incentive deduction for certain activities 1,602 1,544
2013 Incentive deduction for certain activities 1,151 1,300
2010 Domestic double taxation tax credit 97 97
2009 International double taxation tax credit . N 1893 . 189|
2010 International double taxation tax credit 107 107
2011 International double taxation tax credit 92 92
2012 International double taxation tax credit 277 277
2013 Domestic double taxation tax credit 34,362 -

Total 41,094 6,823

9.7. Years open for review and tax audits

Under current legislation, taxes cannot be deemed to have been definitively setiled until the tax returns filed
have been reviewed by the tax authorities or until the statute-cof-limitations period has expired.

In March 2013 the tax agency gave the Company notice of the commencement of review and investigation
procedures on the following matters:

Corporate income tax for 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

- VAT for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

- Personal income tax withholdings and prepayments for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

- Tax withholdings and prepayments relating to income from movable capital for 2009, 2010 and

2011.
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- Tax withholdings and prepayments relating to property income for 2008, 2010 and 2011.
- Non-resident income tax withholdings and prepayments for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

With regard to the aforementioned procedures, the inspection was completed in 2014, and at 24 July 2014
the assessments relating to all the taxes of the Company under review had been received. The total amount
of the assessments signed on an uncontested basis was EUR 1,632 thousand, which was paid by the
Company {without taking into consideration the corporate income tax mentioned below).

In the tax assessments relating to the tax audits issued against the Spanish consolidated tax group of which
Company is the Parent, the tax authorities questioned three matters relating to the corporate income tax of
the Spanish consolidated tax group:

+ The tax authorities questioned certain of the fax losses reported by the Spanish consolidated tax
group for 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 totalling EUR 97 million (tax asset of EUR 29.1 million).
Provisions had been recognised for certain of these tax assets, amounting to EUR 21.7 million, at
31 December 2013. Therefore, the tax assets recognised for tax loss carryforwards reported by the
group were overstated by EUR 7.4 million.

+ The tax authorities also challenged the deductibility of the amortisation of the goodwill paid on the
acquisition of foreign companies and concluded that the associated deferred fax liability was
overstated by EUR 12.7 million.

* In addition, for 2012 and 2013, which were not open for review, the Group decided to apply the
conclusions set forth in the tax assessments for 2008-2011 and also regularised the deferred tax
asset relating to the non-deductibility of borrowing costs and concluded that it had wrongly
recognised deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 3.5 million. At 2013 year-end the Company had
recognised provisions for deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 7 million and, therefore, at the end
of 2014 it recognised an income tax benefit of EUR 3.5 million as a result of the excessive
provision recognised in 2013.

Therefore, the result of the tax assessments had a positive impact on the corporate income tax of Spanish
consolidated tax group expense for 2014 of EUR 8.8 million. This resulted in an impact on the Company of
EUR 7.6 million, since the remainder was included in the recognition of corpeorate income tax of the
subsidiaries which form part of the Spanish consolidated tax group.

Lastly, it should be mentioned that the tax authorities did not impose penalties in relation to all the items
adjusted in the aforementioned tax audits, since they considered that all the companies audited had
interpreted the applicable tax legislation in a reasonable fashion.

Also, Law 27/2014, of 27 November, reforming corporate income tax legislation came into force in 2014.
These reforms include, inter alia, the reduction of the standard corporate income tax rate to 28% for 2015
and to 25% for 2016. Accordingly, the Company adjusted its tax assets based on these new future
corporate tax rates, giving rise to a net expense of EUR 10 million on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for 2014.

These notes to the financial statements do not include the information referred to in Article 42 bis of Royal
Decree 1065/2007 in relation to persons resident in Spain, whether legal entities that are beneficiaries or
holders of accounts abroad or individuals from the Company who are authorised representatives for
accounts abroad held by a Company subsidiary non-resident in Spain, since such information is duly
recorded and detailed in the Company's accounting records pursuant to Article 42 bis 4.b of Royal Decree
1065/2007.
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10. Income and expenses

10.1. Revenue

The Company's revenue for 2014 and 2013 relates in full to transactions carried out with Group companies
(see Note 11.1.).

The detail of the revenue for 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2014 2013
Dividend revenue 28,331 190,000
Finance revenue 15,010 11,266
Management fee revenue 3,064 2,259
Total 46,405 203,525

10.2. Staff costs

The detail of “Staff Costs” in the income statements for 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2014 2013
‘Wages and salaries 12,439 12,812
Employer social security costs 97 83
Other employee benefit costs 136 63
Total 12,672 12,958

The increase in “Wages and Salaries” corresponds to the bonus recognised in 2014 for certain senior

executives as a consequence of the flotation process initiated by the Company (see Notes 11.3).

The average number of employees in 2014 and 2013, by category and gender, was as follows:

2014

2013

Men Women

Category Total
Top management 5 - 5
Middle management 1 - 1
Supervisors 1 1
Total 6 1 7

Category Men Women Total
Top management 4 - 4
Middle management 1 - 1
Supervisors 1 1 2
Total 6 1 7
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Also, the breakdown of the workforce, by gender and category, at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014

2013

Category Men Women Total
Top management 6 - 6
Middle management 1 - 1
Supervisors - 1 1
Tofal 7 1 8

Category ~Men Woren Total
Top management 4 - 4
Middle management 1 - 1
Supervisors 1 1 2
Total 6 1 7

10.3. Finance costs and finance income

The main finance costs for 2014 relate to:

Borrowing costs of EUR 17,870 thousand relating to the syndicated loan granted on 27 November
2007 and refinanced on 21 November 2012 by Société Générale, as the agent bank, and the other
banks detailed in Note 8. The detail of this amount is as follows: EUR 12,894 thousand in interest
expense, EUR 796 thousand relate to the deferral of the arrangement fee, EUR 3,982 thousand
relate to the derecognition of the remaining arrangement fee capitalised due to the early repayment
of this loan on 13 May 2014, and EUR 198 thousand relate to other fees and commissions
associated with this loan.

Borrowing costs of EUR 9,187 thousand relating to the syndicated loan granted on 13 May 2014 by
Société Générale, as the agent bank, and the other banks detailed in Note 8. The detail of this
amount is as follows: EUR 821 thousand relate to the deferral of the arrangemerit fee, EUR 7,662
thousand relate to the interest on the new loan and EUR 704 thousand relate to other fees and
commissions associated with this loan.

Other finance costs amounting o EUR 9 thousand.

The main finance costs for 2013 relate to:

Borrowing costs of EUR 35,192 thousand relating {o the syndicated loan granted November 2007
and refinanced on 21 November 2012 by Société Générale as agent bank and other banks as
detailed in Note 8.

Borrowing costs of EUR 14,672 thousand relating to the participating loan granted by Azul Finance,
S.a rl. The aforementioned participating loan was converted into capital in full on 20 December
2013.
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* Finance costs of EUR 3,110 thousand relating to the derivative financial instruments arranged by
the Company but which were subsequently rebilled to the subsidiary Arctosa Holding, B.V,,
included under "Revenue - Finance Revenue™.

* Finance costs of EUR 3,587 thousand relating to the derivative financial instruments arranged by
the Company which are considered to qualify for hedge accounting.

=  Other finance costs amounting to EUR 2,199 thousand.

10.4. Other income/loss

11. Transactions and balances with Group and related companies

11.1. Transactions with Group and related companies

In 2014 the Company recognised extraordinary expenses related to the IPO of new shares on 7 May 2014,
amounting to EUR 4,081 thousand.

The detail of the transactions with Group and related companies in 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014
Thousands of euros
Dividend Interest . Services
. Finance Cost
revenue received rendered

Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.L.U. 28,331 8,040 13 3,064

Arctosa Holding, B.V. - 2,164 - -

Applus Iteuve Technology, S.A. - 4,751 - -

Libertytown USA Finco, Inc. - 55 - -

Total 28,331 15,010 13 3,064

2013
_ Thousands of euros
Interest Finance RebilIing - Finance Services
received COsts derivatives revenue rendered

Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.L.TU. 190,000 7,688 - 18 2,259
Azul Finance, S.ar.l. - - - 14,351 -
Arctosa Holding, B.V. - - 3,110 - -
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.A. - 169 - - -
Rontgen Technische Dienst Holding, B.V. - 237 - - -
Libertytown USA Finco, Inc. - 62 - - -
Total 190,000 8,156 3,110 14,369 2,259

On 30 June 2014, the subsidiaty Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.L.U. declared an interim dividend
totalling EUR 21,931 thousand with a charge to its profit for 2013. Subsequently, on 31 December 2014, the
same subsidiary approved a new distribution of dividends to 2014 with a charge profit totalling EUR 6,400

thousand.

On 18 December 2013, the subsidiary Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.L.U. declared dividends totalling
EUR 190,000 thousand with a charge to reserves and its profit for 2013.
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Also, the Company has a "Management fee” agreement with Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. under
which the Company charges the management, analysis and business plan development services and,
overheads, among others. The amount payable under this agreement was established on the basis of a
report prepared by an independent expert and is in line with market prices.

11.2. Balances with Group and related companies

The detail of the balances with related companies reflected in the balance sheets at 31 December 2014 and

2013 is as follows:

2014
Thousands of euros

Long-term | Short-term Non-

loans and | loans and c : " Current Trade

derivatives | derivatives aurrb?es payables | receivables

| (Note 5.1) | (Note 5.2) | PH®
Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.1.1, 136,951 15,666 3,315 119,809 9,933
Libertytown USA Finco, Inc. 2,178 1,189 - - 3,484
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. 4.840 - 117 - -
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.L.U. 96,418 1,276 1,597 - -
Arctosa Holding, B.V. 188,039 7,673 - - -
Applus Norcontrol, S.1.U. - - 6,553 - -
Novotec Consultores, S.AU. 1,074 - - - -
Idiada Autemative Technology, S.A. 3,719 - - - -
Applus Automotive Services, S.L.U. 2 - 334 - _ 354
Total 433,241 25,804 11,916 119,809 13,771
2013
Thousands of euros

Long-term | Short-term Nop-

loans and | foans and cﬁrr& ¢ Current Trade

derivatives | derivatives avables payables | receivables

(Note 5.1) | (Note 5.2) | P
Applus Servicios Tecnologicos, S.1.U, 128,791 61,068 2,136 i0 1,359
Libertytown USA Finco, Inc. 1,973 1,115 - - 1,607
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. 4,643 - 2 - -
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.1.U. 87,887 169 1,598 - -
Arctosa Holding, B.V, - 24,555 - - -
Applus Norcontrol, S.L.U. - - 6,894 - -
Applus RTD UK, Ltd, - - - - 3
Novotec Consultores, S.A.U. 554 - - - -
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. 3,384 - - - -
Other 9 - 149 - -
Total 227,241 86,907 10,779 10 2,969
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On 30 July 2014, the Company granted a loan of EUR 188,059 thousand to the Group company Arctosa
Holding, B.V. The loan bears interest at the same rate as that established in Facility A plus a spread of
0.25%.

The cash pooling arrangement entered into with Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. is recognised under
"Current Liabilities - Current Payables to Group Companies” for an amount of EUR 119,809 thousand.

11.3. Information on directors and senior executives
Remuneration of and obligations to the Board of Directors

In 2014 the remuneration and other benefits earned by the members of the Board of Directors of the Company
amounted to EUR 2,260 thousand (2013: EUR 280 thousand). The main difference between 2014 and 2013 is
that in 2014 the remuneration of the executive director, including the exceptional incentive granted to it on the
occasion of the initial public offering, is deemed to be remuneration of the Board, not management, and it also
includes the termination payment and incentive arising from the termination of the services of the former
Chairman of the Group, amounting EUR 830 thousand.

This amount does not include the exceptional incentive granted to the executive director explained in further
paragraphs, which is quantifted under Remuneration of and obligations to senior executives.

As regards the remuneration of the executive director, the latter is a beneficiary of the so-called “Financial
Incentive Plan”. This remuneration is composed of (i) the so-called “Financial Incentive Plan”, paid in 2014; and
(i) the so-called “Financial Incentive in RSUs", which envisages the delivery, for no consideration, of a given
number of restricted stock units ("RSUs").

The Financial Incentive in RSUs was delivered at the time the remuneration system was granted (i.e. 9 May
2014) and the RSUs are exchangeable for shares of the Company pursuant to the vesting schedule agreed upon
with the beneficiary of the remuneration system. The RSUs do not confer rights (dividend or voting) of any kind
over the Company and are non-transferrable. Each RSU will be exchanged, for no consideration, for one ordinary
share of the Company on the planned vesting date, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Financial
Incentive Plan. The value of the financial incentive will therefore depend on the market price of the shares on the
vesting date of the RSUs and their consequent exchange for shares of the Company.

The executive director has received 1,178,968 RSUs under the Financial incentive Plan which, if the RSUs were
to be exchanged for shares of the Company at the date of this report, would represent 0.91% of the Company's
voting power.

In particular, the RSUs delivered to executive director under the Financial incentive Plan will be exchangeable for
shares of the Company in accordance with the following vesting schedule:

- 392,989 RSUs on 9 May 2015;
- 392,989 RSUs on 9 May 2016; and
- 392,990 RSUs on 9 May 2017.

The beneficiary's right to exchange his RSUs for shares of the Company under the Financial Incentive Plan will
remain in force provided he is still discharging the duties of his position when the RSUs vest, subject to
occurrence of events that would cause the RSUs to vest early (death, permanent disability, change of control)
and the bad-leaver and good-leaver clauses envisaged in the contract.

Should it not be possible to deliver the shares of the Company on the vesting date of the RSUs for reasons
attributable to the Company, he will be entitled to receive payment in cash instead of the delivery of shares for an
amount equal to (i) the weighted average market price of the shares at the close of all the trading sessions in the
calendar guarter prior to the date on which the shares of the Company should have been delivered; multiplied by
(i) the number of shares that should have been delivered in that year pursuant to the Financial Incentive Plan.
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The President of the Board of Directors is the beneficiary of a compensation plan referred to as RSU Award
Agreement. The remuneration plan consists of conferring 6,897 RSUs to the Chairman of the Board taking effect
from the date the remuneration plan was granted (that is, 9 May 2014). The RSUs do not confer rights (dividend
or voting) of any kind over the Company and are non-transferrable. Each RSU will be exchanged, for ho
consideration, for one ordinary share of the Company on the planned vesting date, pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the RSU Award Agreement. The value of the finarncial incentive will therefore depend on the market
price of the shares on the vesting date of the RSUs and their conseguent exchange for shares of thie Company.
The Chairman of the Board has received 6,897 RSUs under the agreement referred to as RSU Award Agreement
which, if the RSUs were to be exchanged for shares of the Company at the date of this report, would represent
0.005% of the Company's voting power.

The vesting of the RSUs will take effect oné year from the date of conferring the financial incentive. The
Chairman’s right to exchange his RSUs for shares of the Company under the RSU Award Agreement will remain
in force provided he is still discharging the duties of his position when the RSUs vest, subject to occurrence of
events that would cause the RSUs to vest early (death, permanent disability, change of contiol).

The remunerations received by the members of the Board of Directors for participating in the various committees
delegated by the Board of Directors in 2014 have been as follows: '

internal Audit Committee Corporate Governance

Committee

Commiitteée of Designation and
Remuneration

32 19 ' 32

These remunerations for members of the various board commitiees are part of the total compensation for 2014 to
the Board of Directors referred to in the first paragraph.

As at 31 December 2013 a member of the Board of Directors had a mortgage amounting EUR 1,100 thousand
plus interest, that has been amortized prior to its maturity during the year 2014, not existing as at December 31,
2014 any other advances or loans granted to members of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company does not have any significant pension or life insurance obligations te the Company's directors,

At 31 December 2014, the Company's Board of Directors was made up of 9 men (8 men and 4 legal entities
represented by men at 31 December 2013).

Remuneration of and obligations to senior executives

It has been defined as Management, those executives who were members of the Executive Committee in 2014,
thus being direcily dependent on the Company’s executive director, and also, the internal auditor, in accordance
to the definition borne in the current accounting rules and specially in the "Report of the Special Working Group
on Good Governance of Listed Companies” published by the Spanish regulator CNMV on 16 May of 2006.

The remuneration received by the Management during the year 2014, including severance payments, amounts
EUR 866 thousand (2013: EUR 1,980 thousand), and is as following:

Exercise 2014
Thousands of euros
Fixed Variable
Remuneration | Remuneration | Other Concepts Severance Pension Plan
Team Management 459 159 236 - 12
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Exercise 2013

Thousands of euros

Fixed Variable
Remuneration Remuneration | Other Concepts Severance Pension Plan
Team Management 1,187 731 50 - 12

The remuneration shown in the preceding tables does not include the following 2 incentive plans:

- In May 2014 the Company has agreed and signed with the executive director and two other dependant
senior executives a new incentive plan (“Incentive Agreement”), of which part of it was paid in cash in
the moment of the initial public offering amounting EUR 12.2 million (includes the amount received by
the executive director), and the remaining part has been deferred to be received through 1.626 thousand
of “Restricted Stock Units” that can be exchanged, for no consideration, for ordinary shares of the
Company, according to a linear calendar, subject to the tenure of the executive for 3 years (in exception
to bad-leaver and good-leaver clauses envisaged in the contract), to be proportionally paid in May of
each of the next 3 years, according to the May and July 2014 agreements with such executives. The fair
value of the shares to be bestowed after the 3 year period, at the initial public offering price would
amount to EUR 24 million (taking into account that afl executives remain in the Company for the next 3
years), which the Company provisions each year on a linear basis in the Income Statement of the
consolidated financial statements. The difference between the fair value and the acquisition cost of such
shares shall be registered in shareholder's equity. The expense incurred for this concept of deferred
compensation during 2014, without considering the amount already paid in cash, amounts EUR 5.2
million, figure provisioned under “remuneration payable”.

The total expense in 2014 for this incentive amounts EUR 6.7 million that corresponds to EUR 12.2
million paid in cash, the accrual of EUR 5.2 million derived from the RSU’s, less the EUR 10.7 million
that were provisioned during the prior year for the same concept. These amounts correspond io the
executive director and the 2 other executives.

- Other senior executives of the Company earn variable remuneration subject to the achievement by the
Group of certain financial aggregates in 2014, 2015 and 2016, to be paid in 2017 amounting to EUR 850
thousand. The expense incurred and provisioned for the aforementioned variable remuneration at 31
December 2014 amounts EUR 217 thousand.

Life insurance policies have been taken out for certain senior executives, although the amount thereof is not
material. Such costs are classified under *Other concepts” in the preceding tables.

At 31 December 2014 no advances or loans were granted to any senior executives.
At 31 Becember 2014 the Group's senior management was composed of 2 men.
The internal auditor has also been included in terms of retribution.

The executive director is classified as remuneration of the Board of Directors in 2014 but is classified as
remuneration to senior executives in 2013,

11.4. Information refating to conflict of interest on the part of the directors

It is hereby stated that the directors, their individual representatives and the persons related thereto do not hold
any investments in the share capital of companies engaging in identical, similar or complementary activities to
those of the Company or hold positions or discharge duties thereat, other than those held or discharged at the
Applus Group companies, that could give rise to a conflict of interest as established in Article 229 of the Spanish
Limited Liability Companies Law.
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12. Foreign currency balances and transactions

The detail of the most significant balances and transactions in foreign currency, valued at the year-end exchange
rates and the average excharige rates for the vear, respectively, is as follows (in thousands of euros):

The ioans granted and received by the Company are denominated mainiy in polinds sterling and US doliars.

2014 2013
Loans granted 32,342 31,559
Loans received 24,458 23,763
Income 1,876 1,003
Finance costs 693 721
Services received 243 202

13. Other disclosures

13.1. Fees paid to auditors

In 2014 and 2013 the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the Company's auditor were as
follows (in thousands of euros):

2014
Services provided by
the auditor and by
related firms

Audit services 126
Other services 180
Total audit and related services 306
Tax advisory services -

Other services -

Total 300

2013
Services provided by
the auditor and by
related firms

Audit services 126
Other services -

Total audit and related services 126
Tax advisory services -

Other services 7
Total 133
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13.2. Obligations and other guarantees
At 31 December 2014, the Company had not pledged any shares.

At 31 December 2014, no banks had provided the Company with guarantees to third parties.

13.3. Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers
Under Additional Provision Three "Disclosure obligation” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004,
on combating late payment in commercial transactions, the Company is required to establish a maximum
payment period of 60 days in new agreements entered into with Spanish suppliers after 6 July.

Set forth below are the disclosures required by Additional Provision Three of Law 15/2010, of 5 July:

2014 - 2013
Amount ~ Amount
(Thousands % (Thousands Yo

of euros) of euros)
Paid in the maximum payment period 10,354 60% 1,621 66%
Remainder 6,815 40% 844 34%
Total payments made in the year 17,169 100% 2,465 100%
Weighted average period of late 87 days 110 days
payment (days)
Weighted average period of late 27 days 49 days
payment (days) _
Payments at year-end not made in the 591 5
maximum payment period _

The figures shown in the foregoing table in relation to payments to suppliers relate to suppliers which,
because of their nature, are trade creditors for the supply of goods and services and, therefore, they include
the figures relating to "Payable to Suppliers", "Payable to Suppliers - Group Companies” and "Sundry
Accounts Payable" under “Current Liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Weighted average period of late payment was calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the result of
multiplying the payments made to suppliers outside the maximum payment period by the number of days of
late payment and whose denominator is the total amount of the payments made in the year outside the
maximum payment period. The maximum payment period applicable to the Spanish companies under Law
3/2004, of 28 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions, was 60 days. The
maximum legal payment pericd in 2013 was 60 days.

However, most of this pending payment at year end has been paid during the first 30 days of the year 2015.

14. Events after the reporting period

Effective 12 February 2015, the Applus Group, which Company is the Parent, acguired the US IAG Group
(Integrity Aerospace Group Inc.) and other non-controlling interests, all the share capital of the US companies X-
Ray Industries Inc., Thermalogix LLC., XRl N-Ray Services LLC, Composites Inspections Solutions LLC and
NRay USA Inc., the Canadian company NRAY Services Inc. and a majority interest that includes a call option on
100% of the US company Arcadia Aerospace Industries LLC for USD 52.726 million (EUR 42.303 thousand) and
an Earn Out that will be met depending on future years’ resuits.

X-Ray Industries Inc., Thermalogix LLC., XRI N-Ray Services LLC, NRay USA Inc. and NRAY Services Inc. form

part of the RTD division in order to reinforce the Applus+ Group's position in the US market for testing in the
aeronautics and other indusirial seciors, while Arcadia Aerospace industries LLG and Composites inspections
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Solutions LLC form pait of the Applus + Laboratories division and represent that division's first incursion into the
US market, as a supplier of testing services in aeronautical components and materials.

15. Explanation added for translation to English

These financial statements are presented on the basis of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable
te the Company (see Note 2.1). Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with that
regulatory framework may not conform with other generally acceépted accounting principies and rules.

Barcelond, 24 February 2015

D, Christopher Cole . Ernesto Gerardo Mata Lépez
Chairman Director

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer T D. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi
Director Director

D. Mario Pardo Rojo D. John Daniel Hofmeister
Director Director

D. Josep Maria Panicello Primé D. Richard Campbell Nelson
Director Director

D. Fernando Basabe Armijo
Vocal

Ditigence extended by the Secretary of the Board of Directors fo certify that the Directors D. Pedro de Esteban
Ferrer and D. Josep Maria Paniceilo not sign this document due fo excused absence for professional reasons
and without prejudice to the need into account its favorable vote, having being represented and voting by the
Directors D. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi and D. Mario Pardo Rojo, respectively.
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Translation of a report originally issued in Spanish. in the evént of a discrepancy, the Spanish-laniguage versicri prevails.

Applus Services, S.A.

Directors’ Report
for the year ended
31 December 2014

Formally prepared by the directors of Applus Services, S.A. in relation to the year ended 31 December 2014,
Dear Shareholders:

We are pleased to submit to you this report on the Company's performance in 2014 and on its progress up to the
present date.

Company performance and earnings

Although the income of the Company has decreased over the prior year due to receiving less dividends from its
subsidiaries, it is important to point out that the net financial expenses decreased significantly in the period, from
EUR 59.2 million to EUR 25.1 million, after reducing financial debt with the proceeds from the initial public
offering (IPO). At the time of the IPO the debt was refinanced to lower rates than the previous agreed rates.

In North America, Applus+ purchased three companies with revenue of €22 million from IAG and other third party
shareholders: X-Ray Industries, N-Ray Services and Arcadia Aerospace which are the premier suppliers of Non
Destructive Testing to the aerospace market and gas turbine industry. The companies, with 74 years of history,
have over 200 employees and operate primarily from 7 locations across the USA and Canada and a further 10
co-locations embedded within customer facilities. X-Ray Industries and N-Ray Services will form part of the
Applus+ RTD division and will reinforce the division’s strotig presence in the North American market. Arcadia
Aerospace will be part of Applus+ Laboratories and will be this division's first entry into the US market. The
acquisition closed at the start of 2015 following the receipt of the necessary approvals from the US authotities.

In Latin America, Applus+ purchased Ingelog, a supplier of engineering and project management services to the
civil and private infrastructure industries in the region. This acquisition of the leading provider of these services in
Chile will support the strong growth and development of Applus+ Norcontrol in Latin America and is expected to
add initial annual revenue of €18 million. The acquisition closed at the end of October 2014.

As a recently listed company, the Board will propose at the Group's first annual general meeting of shareholders
(AGM} on the 18 June 2015, the payment of a dividend of €0.13 per share. This is equivalent to €16.9 million and
is 19.3% of the Adjusted Net Income of €87.7 millicn as shown in the summary financial results table above. This
is in line with the guidance given at the time of the IPO. The dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the
AGM will be paid within 30 days of this meeting.

The new five year debt facilities entered into by the Group at the time of the IPO are sufficient to ensure good
liquidity for the medium and fonger term.

Outiook for the Company

The longer term drivers in the various industries served by Applus+ are favourable. The current uncertainty on
the oil and gas industry will inevitably have some impact on Group revenue in the short term, but the continuing
and longer term demand for verification of energy assets must increase due to the global requirement for more
energy infrastructure as well as the ageing of the existing asset base. The parts of the Group unrelated to oil and
gas also hold favourable long term growth drivers, from increased demand for safety and quality services and the
increased expansion of the Applus+ network into new territories.
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Main risks

The main risks to which the Company is exposed are those typically faced by a holding company and the industry
in which its subsidiaries operate, in particular the risk posed by the growth that the Applus Group is currently
experiencing.

The policy of the directors is to take the decisions that they may consider appropriate in order to mitigate any kind
of risk related to the Company's activities.

Environment

In view of the Company's business activities, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets,
provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its equity, financial position or results.
Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmeéntal issues are included in the notes to the financial
statements.

Research and development activities

The Company did not perform any research and development activities in 2014,

Treasury share transactions

In 2014 the Company recognised under "Equity" freasury shares amounting EUR 5,407 thousand arising from an
equity swap agreement with a financial institution to hedge the acquisition cost of 550,000 treasury shares to be
physically-settled, and that the Company must partially deliver to certain executives. This agreement matures on
30 April 2015, date in which the Company will receive the shares from the financial institution. Consequently, on
9 May 2015 the Parent must deliver some of the aforementioned shares to the various executives.

Significant events after the reporting period

Effective 12 February 2015, the Applus Group acquired the US IAG Group (Integrity Aerospace Group inc.) and
other non-controlling interests, all the share capital of the US companies X-Ray Industries Inc., Thermalogix
LLC., XRl N-Ray Services LLC, Composites Inspections Solutions LLC and NRay USA Inc., the Canadian
company NRAY Services Inc. and a majority interest that includes a call option on 100% of the US company
Arcadia Aerospace Industries LL.C for USD 52.726 million (EUR 42.303 thousand) and an Earn Qut that will be
met depending on future years’ results.

Use of financial instruments
The Company uses financial derivatives to eliminate or significantly reduce certain interest rate and foreign
currency risks relating to its assets. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

During 2014 the Company has not acquired any financial detivative instruments, in exception to the equity swap
agreement explained in the “Treasury share transactions” of this report.

During 2014 all of the interest rate derivatives acquired in prior years have matured, and management has
decided not to acquire new ones.

Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers

Under Additional Provision Three “Disclosure obligation” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004, on
combating late payment in commercial transactions, the Company is required to establish a maximum payment
period of 80 days in new agreements entered into with Spanish suppliers after 6 July.
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Set forth below are the disclosures required by Additional Provision Three of Law 15/2010, of 5 July:

2014 2013
Amount Amount
(Thousands % {Thousands %

of euros) of euros)
Paid in the maximum payment period 10,354 60% 1,621 66%
Remainder 6,815 40% 844 34%
Total payments made in the year 17,169 100% 2,465 100%
Weighted average period of Ilate 87 days 110 days
payment (days)
Welg_hted average period of I[ate 27 days 49 days
payment (days)
Payments at year-end not made in the 521 2
maximum payment period

The figures shown in the foregoing table in relation to payments to suppliers relate to suppliers which,
because of their nature, are trade creditors for the supply of goods and services and, therefore, they include
the figures relating to "Payable to Suppliers", "Payable to Suppliers - Group Companies" and "Sundry
Accounts Payable" under “Current Liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Weighted average period of late payment was calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the result of
multiplying the payments made to suppliers outside the maximum payment period by the number of days of
late payment and whose denominator is the total amount of the payments made in the year ouiside the
maximum payment period. The maximum payment peripd applicable to the Spanish companies under Law
3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions, was 60 days. The
maximum legal payment period in 2013 was 60 days.

However, most of this pending payment at year end has been paid during the first 30 days of the year 2015,

The Company is gradually adapting its payment to the latest changes of the current regulations. Also in this
year, the Company has received from its suppliers invoices of significant amount at a very close date to its
expiration. Due to this the Company has had to adjust their payment date according to the cash forecast,
resulting, therefore, a period exceeding the 60 days counting from the date of invoice

Barcelona, 24 February 2015
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D. Christopher Cole D. Ernesto Gerardo Mata Lépez

Chairman Director

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer D. Alex Wagenberg Bondarcvschi
Director Director

D. Mario Pardo Rojo D ..John Daniel Hofmeister
Director Director

D. Josep Maria Panicello Primé . D. Richard Campbell Nelson
Director Director

D. Fernando Basabe Armijo
Vocal

Diligence extended by the Secretary of the Board of Directors fo certify thaf the Directors D. Pedro de Esteban
Ferrer and D. Josep Maria Panicello not sign this document due to excused absence for professional reasons
and without prejudice to the need info account its favorable vole, having being represented and voling by the
Directors D. Alex Wagenberg Bendarovschi and D. Mario Pardo Rojo, respectively.
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[ ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED COMPANIES |

A, OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

At

A2,

Complete the following table about the share capital of the company:

Date of last change

Share capital (€)

Number of shares

Number of
Voting rights

8/05/2014

13,601,675.50

130,016,755

130,016,755

State whether there are different classes of shares with different rights

attaching thereto:

Yes [ ]

No [X]

Breakdown of direct and indirect holders of significant shareheldings in the
company as of the end of the financial year, excluding directors:

. £ th Number of direct | Number of |, ;
Individual osrhc;r:r?:lr;i:lame of the voting rights indirect % of f;ti:tilt\sfotmg
voting rights 9
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC 0 5.000.000 3,85%
GIC PRIVATE LIMITED 8.000.000 0 6,15%
CEP Hl PARTICIPATIONS, S.arl. SICAR 0 48.161.582 35,50%

Individual er company name of the

Individual or company name of the

Number of voting

SICAR

indirect shareholder direct shareholder rights
THREADNEEDLE ASSET
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 5.000.000
CEP 1l PARTICIPATIONS, Sar.l AZUL HOLDING, S.C.A. 46.167.582

State the most significant changes in the shareholding structure that have
occurred during the financial year:

Individual or company name of the
shareholder

Date of transaction

Description of transaction

It has decreased below 40% in the

CEP lll Participations S.4r.| SICAR 9/05/2014 capital stock
o
Morgan Stanley 2B/05/2014 It has decreasgd below 10% in the
capital stock
Carmignac Gestion, S.A. 2310612014 It has decreased below 3% in the

capital siock
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It has decreased below 3% in the
UBS AG 10/07/2014 capital stock
It has decreased below 3% in the
Deutsche Bank AG 06/10/2014 capital stock
e It has decreased below 3% in the
Credit Suisse Group AG 10/12/2014 capital stock

A.3. Complete the following tables about members of the board of directors of
the company who have voting rights attaching to shares of the company:

Numb: f indirect] % of total voti
Number of direct | f_'ro . direct; % . voHng
Individual or company name of voting rights voting rights rights
the director
MR. FERNANDO BASABE ARMIJO 344.828 o 0.27
MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE 6.897 [} 0,01

{Toial percentage of voting rights held by the board of directors: 0.27%

Complete the following fables about members of the company's board of
directors who hold rights over the company’s shares:

A.4 State, if applicable, the family, commercial, contractual, or corporate
relationships between significant shareholders, to the extent known to the
company, unless they are immaterial or resul{ from the ordinary course of
business:

A.5 State, if applicable, the commercial, contractual, or corporate
relationships between significant shareholders and the company and/or
its group, unless they are immaterial or result from the ordinary course
of business:

A.6 State whether any shareholders’ agreements affecting the company
pursuant to the provisions of sections 530 and 531 of the Companies Act
(Ley de Sociedades de Capital) have been reported to the company. If so,
briefly describe them and list the shareholders bound by the agreement:

Yes [ | No

State whether the company is aware of the existence of concerted actions
among its shareholders. If so, briefly describe them:

Yes [ ] No

Expressly state whether any of such agreements, arrangements or
concerted actions have been modified or terminated during the financial
year:

N/A
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A.7 S8tate whether there is any individual or legal entity that exercises or may
exercise control over the company pursuant to article 4 of the Securities Market
Act (Ley del Mercado de Valores). If so, identify it:

Yes Ne []

Individual or company name
CEP Il Participations S.& r.l. SICAR and CEP |l Participations S.a r.l. S|CAR
Comments

Given that CEP 1l Participations S.a r.. SICAR and CEP HI Participations S.a r.l.
SICAR still directly or indirectly hold a material number of shares of the company,
although they represent less than half the capital stock, they continue to exercise a
certain influence over the decisions approved by the company's General
Shareholders Meeting and Board of Directors.

A.8 Complete the following tables about the company's treasury shares:

Asg of year-end:

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares (*) | Total % of share
capital
0 0 0%
{*)Through:

Describe any significant changes, pursuant to the provisions of Royal
Decree 136272007, which have occurred during the financial year:

A.9 Describe the terms and conditions and the duration of the mandate
currently in force given by the shareholders to the board of directors in
order to issue, repurchase or transfer the shares of the company:

The General Sharehclders Meeting of 25 March 2014 unanimously agreed to
“‘authorise the Company’s Board of Directors so it may proceed with a derivative
acquisition of its own shares, both directly by the Company itself and indirectly by its
controfled companies, in the terms established below:

a) The acquisition may be made as a sale and purchase, swap or dation in
payment, once or several times, provided that the shares acquired, when
added fo those already held by the Company, do not exceed 10% of the
capital stock;

b) The price or countervalue will range between the face value of the shares
and 110% of their listed price; and

¢) The authorisation will remain valid until the approval of the annual accounts
for the financial year ending 31 December 2014.

Furthermore and for the purposes of arficle 146.1, paragraph fwo, of the Companies
Act, the General Shareholders Meeting hereby unanimously agrees fo grant an
express authorisation to acquire Company shares in favour of any of the controlled
companies, in the same terms rasuiting from this resolution.

For the necessary purposes, it is hereby expressly noted that any shares acquired as
a result of this authorisation may be used both for disposal or redemption, or towards
the remuneration systems foreseen in article 146.1, paragraph three, of the
Companies Act.

This authorisation will be effective as of the date the Company shares are officially
listed on the Sfock Exchange Markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia®.



[ENGLISH GUIDE TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY}

A2

B.2

NOTE: In turn, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28 July 2014
unanimously agreed to establish an ad hoc committee in order to determine the
date and number of own shares to be acquired, pursuant to the terms and
conditions included in the Incentives Pian and for any other purpose that may be
beneficial for the corporate interest.

State whether there are any restrictions on the transfer of securities
andfor any restriction on voting rights. In particular, disclose the
existence of any restrictions that might hinder a takeover of the company
through the acquisition of its shares in the market.

Yes No |:|

NOTE: As it is market practice in initial public offerings operaticns, on 7 May
2014, before its shares were listed on the stock exchange markets of Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbac and Valencia, the company executed an Underwriting
Agreement whereby both the company and Azul Holding S.C.A and Azul Finance
S.& r.l., then shareholders of the company, undertook not to transfer their shares
in the company over a period of 180 days following the listing date. of its shares,
without the consent of the global coordinators of the issue. Furthermore, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer of the company will not be able to transfer their shares over a
period of 360 days folfowing the listing date of the company shares, without the
consent of the global coordinators of the issue.

State whether the general shareholders' meeting have approved the adoption

measures to neutralize a public takeover bid, pursuant to the provisions of Law
6/2007:

Yes [ ] No

If applicable, describe the approved measures and the terms on which the
restrictions will become ineffective:

State whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on a
regulated market within the European Community.

Yes [} No

If applicabkle, state the different share clases and, for each of them, the
rights and obligations.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
State and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the minimum

requirements set out in the Companies Act in connection with the quorum
needed to hold a valid general shareholders' meeting.

yes [ ] No

State and, if applicable, explain any differences from the rules set out in the
Companies Act for the adoption of corporate resolutions:

Yes [ | No

Describe how they differ from the rules provided by the Companies Act.
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B.3

B.4

B.5

Be6

B.7

State the rnules applicable to the amendment of the by-laws of the
company. In particular, disclose the majorities provided for amending the
by-laws, and any rules provided for the protection of the rights of the
shareholders in the amendment of the by-laws.

COMPANY BY-LAWS

Article 19.2 of the company By-laws provides that all resolutions will be adopted
with the favorable vote of more than half the voting shares, present or
represented at a General Shareholders Meeting, unless a qualified majority is
required by the Act or the Company By-laws. The General Meeting Regulations
will describe the procedures and systems used to calculate the votes issued on
any proposed resolutions.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING REGULATIONS

In order for a General Meeting to validly convened, if an amendment of the By-laws is
intended, article 16.8 (b) of the Regulations will apply, whereby it will be necessary
the assistance of shareholders, present or represented at first call that hold at least
fifty per cent (50%) of the voting capital stock subscribed. At second call, it will suffice
for twenty-five per cent (25%]) of the capital stock to attend.

In order for the General Shareholders Meeting to adopt resolutions that entail an
amendment of the By-laws, at least two thirds (2/3) of the voting capital stock in
attendance must vote in favour, as foreseen in article 21.1 (b) of the General
Shareholders Meeting Regulations.

State the data on aftendance at the general shareholders’ meetings held
during the financial year referred to in this report and those of the prior
financial year:

. Attendance data
% of % of % absentee votin
D;;%;EEEE:I;;?I St:)?;es:zitdi?lrs r:::s::::fl.ggrSy Eiectronic voting. (;qther Total
person proxy

4 March 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
25 March 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
4 April 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% | 100%
22 Aprl 2014 | 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
7 May 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%

State whether there are any By-law restrictions requiring a minimum
number of shares to attend the general shareholders® meeting.

ves [ | Mo

State whether it has been resolved that certain decisions involving a
structural modification of the company ("subsidiarisation”, purchase/sale of
core operating assets, transactions equivalent to the liquidation of the
company, etc.) must be submitted for approval by the shareholders at a
general shareholders' meeting, even if not expressly required by Commercial
Laws.

Yes No []

State the address and method for accessing the company's website to access
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C.

cA

information regarding corporate governance and other information regarding

general

shareholders through the company's website.

shareholders' meetings that must bé made available to the

The corporate website is available at www.applus.com. At the top, under “Investor
Relations®, full information is provided on corporate governance and General

Meetings.

Specifically,

through

the

htto:/fwww applus. com/es/investorRelations/Corporate-governance
hitp/fwww, applus. com/es/InvestorRelafions/Shareholders-meetings - direct access is

provided to information on corporate governance and General Meetings, respectively.

STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT

Board of directors

following

links~-

and

c11 Maximum and minimum number of directors set forth in the By-
laws:
Maximum number of directors 9
Minimum number of directors 7
C.1.2 Complete the foliowing table identifying the members of the
board:
Individual or . . Position on| Date of first Date of last Election
company name of | Representative Board appointment | appointment rocedure
the director PP PP P
GENERAL
MR. CHRISTOPHER SHAREHOLDERS
COLE N/A CHAIRMAN 07/05/2014 07/05/14 MEETING
RESCLUTION
MR. FERNANDO GENERAL
BASABE ARMLIO N/A DIRECTOR 01/02/2011 0410312014 SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING RESOLUTION
MR. RICHARD GENERAL
CAMPRELL NELSON N/A DIRECTOR 01/10/2C09 04/03/2014 SHAREHOLDERS
RAC TR, DS | ITIAA
MR. PEDRO DE GENERAL
ESTEBAN FERRER N/A DIRECTOR 27/09/2007 04/04/2014 SHAR I
MR. JOHN DANIEL
N/A DIRECTOR 1/07/2013 04/03/2014 GENERAL
HOFMELISTER SHAREHOLDERS
MR. EREC')EF‘?ETS MATA NIA DIRECTOR 26/11/2007 04/03/2014 GENERAL
SHAREHOLDERS
MR. JOSEP MARIA ; GENERAL
PANICELLO PRIME NVA DIRECTOR 08/10/2013 04/03/2014 SHANERAL s
MR. M’;%?OPARDO N/A DIRECTOR 2710812007 04/04/2014 GENERAL
SHAREHOLDERS
MR. ALEX
WAGENBERG N/A DIRECTOR 27/09/2007 04/04/2014 SH A%i’;ﬁ_%’g 25
BONDAROVSCHI MEETING RESOLUTION
I Total number of directors 9
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State the vacancies on the board of directors during the reporting
period:

C.1.3

Individual or company Status of the Date of vacancy
name of the director director at time of
vacancy
AZUL MANQ_CEEMENT SA Proprietary 4 Aprit 2014
(LLHXEEFI\JA';?)’EJYF:GE),G;? LIETL Proprietary 4 April 2014
CEP Il ADVISOR, SAR.L. Proprietary 4 Aprit 2014
CEP Il Ag.\:_l.SOR. S.A Proprictary 4 Aprit 2014
MR. Céqurhﬁg Is(jI:\NDER Propristary 4 Aprit 2014
MR. CHRISTOPHER FINN Proprietary 4 April 2014
M%éfég y{ﬁ%ULEL Proprietary 4 April 2014
MR. Joggﬂﬁ i(J:OELLO Proprictary 7 May 2014

Compiete the following tabie about the members of the
board and each member's status:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Individual or company
name of director

Committee that has

reported on the
director's
appointmeant

Position within the
company's
structure

MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJO

APPOINTMENTS AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Total number of executive directors

1

Total % of the beard

11.11%

EXTERNAL PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS

Individual or company
name of director

Committee that
has reported on
the director’s
appointment

individual or company
name of the significant
shareholder
represented by the
director or that has
proposed the director's
appointment

MR. PEDRO DE ESTEBAN |APPOINTMENTS AND)
FERRER REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Azul Holding, 5.C.A.

MR. ALEX WAGENBERG
BONDARQVSCHI

IAPPOINTMENTS AND,

REMUNERATION

CUMMIT TEE

Azul Holding, S.C.A.
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IAPPOINTMENTS AND)
REMUNERATION

MR. MARIO PARDO RQJO COMMITTEE Azul Holding, S.C.A.

MR. JOSEP MARIA APPOINTMENTS
PANICELLO PRIME AND Azul Holding, 5.C.A.

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE
Total number of proprietary directors 4
Total % of the board 44.44%

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Individual or company Profile
name director’

See description below Ditto

Director's identity or name: MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

Profile: Mr. Cole holds a Degree in Environmental Engiveeting from
ot - Polytechnic (University of South Bank) and is an associate
| the United' Kingdont. Furthermore, Mr. Cole cormipleted dri
Mariagement Course &t INSEAD, France, in 1999. Mr. Cole
founded WSP Group Plc, a professional services company that was
listed on the London Stock Exchange in 1987. Mr. Cole held the post of
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the company until it merged with
Genivar, Inc. in 2012, whereupon he was appointed non-executive
chairman of the entity resulting from the merger, WSP Global Inc.,
whose shares were listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange, Currently,
Mr. Cole is also non-executive chairman of Ashtead Group Ple, senior
independent director of Infinis Energy Plc and non-executive chairman
of Tracsis Plc.

Dgectofs identity or name: MR. ERNESTO GERARDO MATA
LOPELZ

Profile: Mr. Mata Ldpez holds a Degree in Economics and MA from
the University of Geneva and an MBA from IESE (Barcelona). Mr.
Mata Lopez has developed extensive experience in the energy and
capital markeis sectors. He was a director of Unién Fenosa, S.A. {now
Gas Natural SDG, S.A), Unidn Fenosa Soluziona, S.A., Compafiia
Espafiola de Petrdleos, S.A. and Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A., where
he was the chairman of the audit committee. Currently, Mr. Mata Lopez
is a member of the advisory board of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A.,
chairman of the board of Pagaralia, S..., Senior Advisor to Matlin
Patterson Global Advisers LLC, member of the board of Factor
Energia, S.A., Toro Finance, S.L. and a member of the advisory board
of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP {Spain).

Director’s identity or name: MR. JOHN DANIEL HOFMEISTER

Profile: Mr. Hofmeister holds a Bachelor's and Master's Degree in
Political Science from Kansas State University. In May 2010 he was
awarded an honorary doctorate from the University of Houston. In May
2014 he was awarded an honorary doctorate from Kansas State
University. Mr. Hofmeister was the President of Shell Ol Company in
the US from 2005 to 2008 and prior to that he was the Group Director
of Human Resources at Royal Dutch Shell in the Netherlands. Mr.
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Hofmeister founded and heads the not for profit membership
association, Citizens for Affordable Energy. Mr. Hofmeister is a key
member of the US Energy Security Council, a bipartisan not for profit
group in Washington, DC that includes several dozen former
Presidential Appointees and Fortune 100 CEO’s who focus on US
national security through energy security. Mr. Hofmeister has also held
executive positions at General Electric, Nortel Networks and
AlliedSignal (now Honeywell International). Mr. Hofmeister serves as a
non-executive director of Hunting ple {(London, UK) and CAMAC
Energy, Inc. (Houston, Texas).

Director’s identity or name: MR. RICHARD CAMPBELL NELSON

Profile: Mr. Nelson is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and holds a Master of Science Degree in
Economics at the London Business School. Mr. Nelson was a director
of Transcontinental Services Inc. from 1972 and CEO from 1982 o the
date of its acquisition by Inchcape Plc in 1985. He was nominated to
the same position in Inchcape Plc which combined Transcontinental
Services Inc. with its consumer goods testing and minerals testing
businesses to become Inchcape Testing Services NA, Inc. In 19986,
Inchcape Testing Services NA, Inc. was acquired by a private equity
firn and hecame Intertek Group Limited of which Mr. Nelson was the
executive chairman until 2002, when the company floated on the
Londan Stock Exchange. At this time, Mr. Nelson became the CEO of
Intertek Group Limited {an ICT sector company) until he retired in
2006.

Total number of independent directors 4

Total % of the board 44.44%

State whether any director classified as independent receives
from the company or its group any amount or benefit for items
other than director remuneration, or maintains or has
maintained during the last financial year a business
relationship with the company or with any company of its
group, whether in the director's own name or as a significant
shareholder, director or senior officer of an entity that
maintains or has maintained such relationship.

Note: Prior to the listing of the company shares on the stock
exchange markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia on
9 May 2014, the services agreements indicated below were
terminated and all outstanding remuneration paid. Currently, there is
no Independent Director receiving payment for any item other than
Director's remuneration.

Individual or company name of the director; Ernesto Mata Lopez
Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreements
Reasoned statemnent; N/A

Individual or company name of the director: Richard Campbell
Neison

Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreements
Reasoned statement: N/A

Individual or company name of the director: John Daniel Hofmeister
Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreemenis
Reasoned statement: N/A

If applicable, include a reasoned statement of the director
regarding the reasons for which it is believed that such
director can carry out the duties thereof as an independent
director.

10
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OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

Describe the reasons why they cannot he considered
proprietary or independent directors as well as their ties,
whether with the company, it§ management, or its
shareholders.

State the changes, if any, in the type of director during the
period:

order for selection procedures to be free of implicit biases
that hinder the selection of female directors, and in order
for the company to deliberately search for women who meet
the professional profile that is sought and include them
among potential candidates:

Description of measures |

11

C.1.4 Complete the following table with information regarding the
number of female directors for the last 4 financial years, as
well as the type of such female directors:
Number of female directors % of total female directors each class
Year Year © Year Year Year Year Year Year
2013 2012 2011 2010 2013 2012 2011 2010
Executive 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Proprietary 0 o 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Independent o 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
C_)ther '
 external 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total: 0 0 0 0] 0% 0% 0% 0%
C.1.5 Describe any measures adopted to include on the board of
directors a number of women that allows for a halanced
presence of men and women.
Description of measures
At present, no woman belongs to the Company’s Board of Directors,
Nevertheless, the Company confirms that;
a) The selection process for new Company members is free of
implicit biases that hinder the selection of women to cover
any vacancies.
b) The Company will make a concise effort to include women,
with the necessary professional qualifications, amongst the
candidates applying to join the Board of Directors.
C.1.6 Describe any measures approved by the remuneration in
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The Appointments and Remuneration Committee has been expressly
assigned this task, gathered in article 40.3.(a)(vili} of the Regulations of

the Board of Directors:

“To report fo the Board of Directors on the issues of gender diversity, and
safeguard that, when filling new vacancies, the selection procedure does
not suffer from implicit biases that might hinder the selection of female
Directors; and so that the Company deliberately searches for, and
includes among potential candidates, women who meef the sought after

professional profile”.

If there are few or no female directors despite any measures

adopted, describe the reasons for such result:

Descriptien of reasons

Since the company's shares werg listed on the stock exchange
markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbac and Valencia last 9 May 2014,
no vacancies have arisen to date on the Board of Directors, which is
why no selection process has been carried out. Nevertheless, in any
future selection procedures the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee will ensure that women meeting the professicnal profile
sought are included amongst the potential candidates, so no implicit
biases that hinder the selection of female directors exist in the

selection procedures.

cC.1.7

c1.8

c.1.9

Explain the form of representation on the board of
shareholders with significant holdings.

Currently, the following Proprietary External Directors are acting on
behalf of Azul Holding, S.C.A., indireclly owned by CEP I
Participations, $.a rl SICAR and CEP lif Participations, S.a r.l.
SICAR: Mr. Josep Maria Panicello Primé, Mr. Pedro de Esteban
Fermrer, Mr. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi and Mr. Maric Pardo
Rojo.

Describe, if applicable, the reasons why proprietary directors
have been appointed at the proposal of shareholders whose
shareholding interest is less than 5% of share capital.

State whether there has been no answer to formal petitions for
presence on the board received from shareholders whose
shareholding interest is equal to or greater than that of others at
whose proposal proprietary directors have heen appointed. If
s0, describe the reasons why such petitions have not been
answered:

yes [ | No

State whether any director has withdrawn from the position as
such before the expiration of the director's term of office,
whether the director has given reasons to the board and by
what means, and in the event that the director gave reasons in
writing to the full board, describe at least the reasons given
thereby:

Name of the director Reason for
withdrawal

12




[ENGLISH GUIDE TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPGSES ONLY]

Azul Management S.ar.l.

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

The Carlyle Group (Luxembourg), S.ar.l.

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbac and Valencia

CEP It Adviser, S.ar.l,

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Biibao and Valencia

CEP Il Advisor, S.ar.l

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Carlos Kinder Espincsa

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Christopher Finn

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Juan Manuel Soler Pujol

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Joaquin Coello Brufau

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

C.1.10 State any powers delegated to the chief executive officer(s):

C.1.11

Identify any members of the board who are directors or
officers of companies within the listed company's group:

individual or company

Company name of the group

name of the director member Post
MR. FEREQRN,’?J% BASABE IDIADA AUTOMOTIVE DIRECTOR's
TECHNOLOGY, SA. REPRESENTATIVE

MR. FERNANDO BASABE

Jrarid APPLUS SERVICIOS SOLE DIRECTOR's
TECNOLOGICOS, SLU. | REPRESENTATIVE

MR. g SABE LGAI TECHNOLOGICAL DIRECTORs
CENTER. SA, REPRESENTATIVE

MR. FERNANDOQ BASABE

APPLUS ITEUVE

SOLE DIRECTOR's

ARMIJO TECHNOLOGY, $.L.U. REPRESENTATIVE
MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJO LIBERTYTOWN USA 1, INC. GHAIRMAN

13
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c1.12

MR. FERNANDO BASABE

LIBERTYTOWN USA FINCO,

CENTER, SA

ARMIJO . CHAIRMAN
MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIIO APPLUS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. CHAIRMAN
MR. EERNANDO BASABE
ARMIIO K1 KATSASTAJAT OY DIREGTOR
MR. FERNANDO BASABE ‘
AN AZUL HOLDING 2 8. 1. MANAGER
VELOS! INTERNATIONAL
MR. FER,':Q]’\"”?J% BASABE | 1151 DING COMPANY B.S.C. DIRECTOR
CLOSED
IDIADA AUTOMOTIVE DIREGTOR's
MR. MARIO PARDO ROJO TECHNOLOGY, S A. REPRESENTATIVE
LGAI TECHNOLOGICAL DIRECTOR's
MR. MARIO PARDC ROJO eI ORe

Identify the directors of your company, if any, who are
members of the board of directors of other companies listed
on official stock exchanges other than those of your group
that have been reported to your company:

Individual or company
name of the director

Name of listed
company

Position

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

ASHTEAD GROUP, PLC.

NON-EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

INFINIS ENERGY, PLC.

SENIOR
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

WSP GLOBAL, INC

NON.EXECUTIVE
CHARIMAN

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

TRACSIS, PLC

NON-EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN

MR. JOHN DANIEL
HOFMEISTER

HUNTING, PLC

NON-EXECUTIVE
BIRECTOR

MR, JOHN DANIEL
HOFMEISTER

CAMAC ENERGY, INGC

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

CA1.13 3State and, if applicable, explain whether the company has
established rules regarding the number of boards of which iis
directors may be members:

Yes []

No [X]

14
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C.1.14 Indicate the company's general policies and strategies
reserved for approval by the fuil board:

Yes No
_ N X
Investment and financing policy
Design of the structure of the group of companies X
. X
Corporate governance policy
. . i X
Corporate social responsibility policy
Strategic or business plan, as well as management X
objectives and annual budgets
Policy for the remuneration and evaluation of X
performance of senior management
Risk control and management policies, as well as the X
periodic monitoring of the internal information and
control systems
Dividend policy, as well the treasury share policy X
and, especially, the limits thereto

C.1.15 State the overall remuneration of the board of directors:

Remuneration of the board of directors {thousands of
euros) 12,210

Amount of total remuneration corresponding to pension 0
rights accumulated by the directors (thousands of euros)

Overall remuneration of the board of directors {thousands
of euros) 12,210

C.1.16 lIdentify the members of the company's senior management who
are not executive directors and state the total remuneration
accruing to them during the financial year:

Individual or company name Position(s}
) CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT &
MR. JORGE LLUCH ZANON COMMUNICATIONS SENIOR VICE
PRESIDENT
MR. JOAN AMIGO [ CASAS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

AUTOMOTIVE EXECUTIVE VICE

MR. AITOR RETES AGUADO PRESIDENT

LABORATORIES EXECUTIVE VICE

MR. JORDI BRUFAU REDONDO PRESIDENT

NORCONTROLS ESPARNA & VELOSI

MR. RAMON FERANDEZ ARMAS EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

15
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NORCONTROL LATAM EXECUTIVE

MR. PABLO SANJUAN SARDE VICE PRESIDENT
- £ i HUMAN RESOURGES SENIOR VICE
MR. JOSE DELFIN PEREZ FERNANDEZ PRESIDENT
MS. EVA ARGILES MALONDA GENERAL COUNSEL
IDIADA EXECUTIVE VICE
MR. CARLES GRASAS ALSINA PRESIDENT
MR. IAIN LIGHT RTD EXECUTHIVE VICE PRESIDENT
MR. ALEIX RIBAS AGUILERA INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER
FORMER AUTOMOTIVE
MR, ARNE WILERSLEV INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE VICE
PRESIDENT
FORMER VELOSI EXECUTIVE VICE
MR, NABIL ABDUL JALIL PRESIDENT
Total senior management remuneration 17.107

{in thousands of euros)

C.1.17 State the identity of the members of the board, if any, who are
also members of the board of directors of significant
shareholders andior in entities of their group:

Individual or company Company name of the Position
name of the director significant shareholder
0. PEDRC DE ESTEBAN THE CARLYLE GROUP
FERRER ESPARNA, S.L. PRESIDENTE

TELECABLE CAPITAL  JJOINT GHIEF EXECUTIVE
P. MARIO PARDO ROJO HOLDING, S.L OFFICER

Describe any significant relationships, other than the ones
contemplated in the prior item, of the members of the board
of directors linking them to significant shareholders and/or
companies within their group:

o S;‘:,i;' ual or ¢ nalr?wghgfdr?l;gdc;m?igi nt| ~Description ;’f
the director shareholder

ESTEBANFERRER | | ESPANA S1 EMPLOYEE

> Ao | "Hee | mwone
7 Sl IR -} v rinel EMPLOYEE

16
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C.1.18 State whether the regulations of the board have been amended
during the financial year:

Yes No []

Description of arhéndments
During the financial year, two changes were made to the
Regulations of the Board of Directors:

» The first informed by the Audit Committee at its meeting
of 28 July 2014 and unanimously apprcved by the Board
of Directors at its meeting likewise held on said date,
amended article 38 in order to enable Executive
Committee meetings fo be held without necessarily
requiring that the Board Secretary be also Secretary of
the Executive Committee.

+ The second was informed by the Audit Commiftee on 30
October 2014 and unanimously approved by the Board of
Directors af its meeting likewise held on said date. Article
7 was amended in order to determine, for internal
organization purposes, the scope of competences and to
define, as necessary, the powers of the Board of
Directors, Executive Committee and Chief Executive
Officer.

Further to article 4.5 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors,
the Board of Directors will inform the shareholders of these
amendments at the next general meeting.

C1.19 State the procedures for the selection, appointment, re-
election, evaluation, and removal of directors. List the
competent bodies, the procedures to be followed, and the
criteria applied in each of such procedures.

Appointment

According to article 23 of the company By-laws, the members of the
Board of Directors shall be appeinted by the General Shareholders’
Meeting, notwithstanding the possibility of cc-opting members as
established in the Spanish Companies Act. It is not necessary to be
a shareholder to be elected member of the Board, except in the
case of co-option. Individual or legal entities covered by any of the
prohibitions established by current legislation for reasons of
incapacity or incompatibility shall be disqualified from Board
membership.

According to article 14 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors,
proposals for the appoiniment of Directors submitted by the Board of
Directors to the consideration of the General Shareholders’ Meeting
and appointment decisions adopted by the Board of Directors
pursuant to its interim appointment authority shall be made subject
to the prior report by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee (in the case of executive and proprietary Directors), and
subject to a proposal from the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee (in the case of independent Directors).

Term of office (article 23.3 of the Company By-laws)

Tenure of office shall be six (6) years as from the date of
acceptance, being able to be re-elected one or more times for
periods of equal duration. However, it is expected the first General
Shareholder's Meeting held in 2015 to approve the amendment,
amongst others, of the articie of the by-iaws regarding the tenure of
office, in order to adapt it to a four {4) years term, in accordance with
Law 31/2014 of December 3 which amends the Companies Act.
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C.1.20

c1.21

Article 15.2 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that directors appointed by interim appaoiniment shall remain in their
posts until the date of the first General Shareholders’ Meeting. This
period will not be included in calculations for the purposes of point
15.1 above.

Re-appointment {(article 16 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors)

Before the reappointment of Directors is proposed to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting, the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee shall issue a report evaluating the work and dedication of
the Directors proposed during the previous term in office.

Self-assessment (article 36 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors)

The Board of Directors shall dedicate the first meeting of the year to
an assessment of its operation during the previous financial year,
evaluating the quality of its work, assessing the effectiveness of iis
regulations, and if appropriate, correcting those aspects that were
found not to be functionat. Furthermore, the Board of Directors shall
assess the performance of its duties through the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the senior executive of the Company, based
on the report issued by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee, as well as the operation of the Board of Directors
Committees, based on their reports.

Removal (article 17 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors)

Directors shall be removad from their post once the term for which
they were appointed has lapsed or when so decided by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting pursuant to the powers conferred upon them
by law and in the by-laws, with no need for said decision to be
included in the agenda of the General Shareholders' Meeting. The
Board of Directors shall not propose the rémoval of any independent
Director before the end of the statutory term for which they have
been appointed, except where the Board of Directors considers that
sufficient grounds for such action exist, based on a report by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee. In particular, sufficient
grounds will be deemed to exist when the Director has failed to fulfil
the duties of its position or is affected by one or more of the
circumstances that wouid have prevented its appointment as an
independent Director, in accordance with applicable legal
provisions.

State whether the board of directors has performed an
evajuation of its activities during the financial year:

Yes [ ] No

If so, explain the extent to which the self-evaluation has given
rise to significant changes in its internal organisation and
regarding the procedures applicable to ifs activities:

State the circumstances under which the resignation of
directors is mandatory

According to article 17.2 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors, "Direcfors must fend their resignation to the Board of
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c.1.22

C.1.23

C1.24

Directors and, where considered appropriate by the Board,
formalize the appropriate resignation in the following
circumstances:

(a) When they cease in the positions, posts, or functions related
with their appointment as executive Directors;

(b} In the case of proprietary Directors, when the shareholder
whose interests they represent transfers all of their shares, or that
they do it in the corresponding number in case said shareholder
reduces its holding in the Company;

(c) When they are affected by any of the incompatibility or
prohibition provisions legally established;

{d} If they are severely reprimanded by the Board of Directors
on the basis of a report by the Appointments and Remuneration
Commiftee as a result of having breached their duties as Directors;
or

(e) When their confinuance on the Board of Directors may
Jeopardize the interests of the company”.

State whether the powers of the top executive of the company
are vested in the chair of the board. If so, describe the measures
that have been taken to mitigate the risks of accumulation of
powers in a single person:

Yes [ | No

State and, if applicable, explain whether rules have been
established wherehy one of the independent directors is
authorised to request that a meeting of the board be called or
that new items be included on the agenda, to coordinate and
hear the concerns of external directors and to direct the
evaluation by the board of directors.

Yes No [ ]

Description of rules

Article 32.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors.- Vice-
chairmen. Delegations,

“When the Chairman of the Board of Directors is also the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, one (1) independent Director
shall be vested by the Board of Directors to request, as it deems
appropriate, that a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
convened and that new items be inciuded on the agenda.”

Are qualified majorities, different from the statutory majorities,
required to adopt any type of decision?

Yes [ ] No

If so, describe the differences:

Explain whether there are specific requirements, other than

Py . P S PP I T NP T B
uie Teguirements reiating 1o direciors, o be appoinied
chairman of the board of directors.

Yes ] Mo
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c1.25

C1.26

c1.27

C.1.28

C.1.29

State whether the chairman has a casting vote:

ves [] No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board set
forth any age limit for directors:

Yes D No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board
establish any limit on the term of office for independent
directors that is different than the term provided by regulatory
provisions:

Yes I:l No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board
establish any specific rules for proxy-voting at meetings of the
board of directors, the manner of doing so, and particularly the
maximum number of proxies that a director may hold, as well
as whether proxies must be given to a director of the same
class. If so, briefly desc¢ribe such rules.

Article 27.2 of the company By-laws provides that directors may
only be represented at meetings of the Board of Directors by
another directar. in any case, representation shall be granted by a
letter addressed to the chairman or by other means detailed in the
Regulations for the Board of Directors.

Article 19 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides the
obligations that Directors must fulfil when in office. Specificaily,
article 19.2.(a) establishes that directers shall attend meetings of
bodies of which they are part and actively participate in
deliberations, so that it can effectively contribute to the decision-
making process. Furthermore, said article also provides that if any
director cannot be present at sessions to which they have been
called to attend, they must instruct the director who they have
appointed as representative.

State the number of meetings that the board of directors has
held during the financial year. In addition, specify the number
of times the hoard has met, i any, at which the chairman did
not attend. Proxies granted with specific instructions shall he
counted as attendance.

Number of meetings of the board 10
Number of meetings of the board at which the
chairman did not attend

State the number of meetings held by the different committees of
the board of directors during the financial year:

Number of meetings of the executive committee 5

Number of meetings of the audit committee 2

Number of meetings of the appointments and
remuneration committee

W
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C.1.30

C.1.31

c.1.32

C.1.33

€.1.34

State the number of meetings that the board of directors has
held during the financial year with the attendance of all of its
members. Proxies granted with specific instructions shall be
counted as attendance:

Attendance of the directors 10
% in attendance of total votes during the financial year 100%

State whether the annual individual accounts and the annual
consolidated accounts that are submitted to the board for
approval are previously certified:

Yes [ ] No

Identify, if applicable, the personipersons that has/have
certified the annual individual and consolidated accounts of
the company for preparation by the board:

Expiain the mechanisms, if any, adopted by the board of
directors to avoid any qualifications in the audit report
on the annual individual and consolidated accounts
prepared by the board of directors and submitted to the
shareholders at the general shareholders' meeting.

Article 13.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establishes
that: “The Board of Direcfors shall atfempt to formulate definitive
financial information so that there is no scope for qualifications or
reservations on the part of fhe auditor. However, when the Board of
Directors is of the view that it must sustain its criteria, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee (and the audifors) shall expiain fo the
shareholders the content and scope of said reservations and
qualifications”.

In accordance with article 39 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee is in charge of, amongst others,
ensuring the efficiency of the internal audit and reviewing the
intefnal control and risk management systerns, as well as discussing
with external auditors any significant weak points in the internal
control system. .

Is the secretary of the board a director?

Yes |:| No

Describe the procedures for appointment and removal of the
secretary of the board, stating whether the appointment and
removal thereof have been reported upon by the appointments
committee and approved by the full board.

Procedure for appointment and removal

Pursuant to article 33.4 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors “The appointment and removal of the Secretary shall be
subject to a report by the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee, and shall be approved by the full Board of Directors”.

Yes [ No
Does the appointments committee report on the appointment? X
Does the appointments committee report on the remaoval? X
Does the full board approve the appointment? X
Does the full board approve the removal? X
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C.1.35

C.1.36

Is the secretary of the board especially responsible for ensuring
compliance with good governance recommendations?

Yes No I:l

Comments

Article 33.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that: “The Secretary shall take particular care to ensure that the
Board of Directors is duly adjusted fo the letter and the spirit of the
faws and reguiations (including that approved by the regulatory
entities); that they conform o the By-laws and the Regulations of
the General Meeting and the Board of Directors and any other
corporate rules; and fake into account the recommendations for
good governarnce accepted by the Company”.

State the mechanisms, if any, established by the company to
preserve the independence of external auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies.

Article 39.7(b) {iii) of the Regulaticns of the Board of Directors
provides that the Audit Committee, will “monitor the independernice of
the external auditor, to which. end, the company shall:

- Nolify any change of auditor fo the CNMV as a relevant fact,
accompanied by a stafement of any disagreements arising with the
outgoing auditor and, should this be the case, their content.

- Ensure that the company and the auditor comply with current
regulations on the provision of non-audit services, the limits on the
auditor's business conceniration, the regulations referring to the
requirement fo. rotate the auditor issuing the audit report, and in
general, any other provisions established in order to ensure the
independence of the auditors.

The Audit Committee shall issue a report annually, in which it shall
exprass its opinion on the auditors’ independence. This report shall
refer in any case fo the provision of additional services provided by
the audifors fo the company or to any entity associated with the
company, whether directly or indirectly.

To this end, the Audit Committee shall receive the auditors’ written
confirmation of their independence in respect of the company, and
any of its associated entifies, whether directly or indirectly, as well
as any information on addifional services of any kind that they have
provided to the company or any of its associated entities, whether
directly or indirectly.

- in the event that the external auditor withdraws, the
circumstances motivating this withdrawal shall be examined.”

State whether the company has changed the external auditor

during the financial year. If so, identify the incoming and the
outgoing auditor:

Yes |:| No

If there has been any disagreement with the outgoing auditor,
provide a description thereof:
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C.1.37

C.1.38

C.1.39

C.1.40

State whether the audit firm performs other non-audit work
for the company and/or its group. If so, state the amount of
the fees paid for such work and the percentage they
represent of the aggregate fees charged to the company
and/or its group:

Yes No [ ]
Company Group Total
Amount of other non-audit work 180 1,062 1,242
(thousands of euros})
Amount of non-audit work / 59% 36% 42%
Aggregate amount billed by the
audit firm (%)

State whether the audit report on the annual accounts for the
prior financial year has observations or qualifications. If so,
state the reasons given by the chair of the audit committee to
explain the content and scope of such observations or
gualiifications.

ves [ ] No

State the consecutive number of years for which the current
audit firm has been auditing the annual accounts of the company
andl/or its group. In addition, state the percentage represented by
such number of financial years audited by the current audit firm
with respect to the total number of financial years in which the
annual accounts have been audited:

Company Group

Number of continuous financial years 8 8

Number of years audited by the current
audit firm/ Number of years in which the 100.00% 100.00%
company has been audited {%)

State whether there is any procedure for directors to hire
external advisory services, and if so, describe it:

Yes Ne [_]

Describe the procedure

Article 26 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors expressly
states that “for the purpose of assisting the Direcfors in the
performance of their duties, the extemal Directors may request the
company to hire legal, accounting or financial advisers or any
other experts, whose services shall be paid by the Company.

Such engagement shall necessarily address specific problems of
certain significance and complexity, arising in the context of the
performance of their duties.

2. The request for contracting advisers or external experts should
be addressed o the Chairman of the Roard of Diractors and shall

be authorized by the Board of Directors if, in its opinion:
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(a) it is necessary to ensure the effective performance of the
duties entrusted fo the independent Directors;

{b) the cost of this assistance is reascnable, in view of the
importance of the issue and given the assets and income
of the Company; and

(¢} the technical assistance sought cannof be provided
adequately by Company experis and specialists.

3. In the event that the request for expert assistance were made
by any of the Committees of the Board of Directors, it may not be
refused, unless the majority of Directors considers that the
circumstances established in paragraph 2 of this article do not
apply.”

C.1.41 State whether there is any procedure for directors to obtain
sufficiently in advance the information required to prepare for
meetings of governing bodies and, if so, describe it:

Yes No [ ]

Describe the proceduré .
Article 25 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that “the Directors may be informed of any aspect of the Company
and companies of the Applus+ Group, whether Spanish or foreign.
To this end, hefshe may examine the documentation he/she
deems appropriate, contact with the heads of the relevant
departments, and visit the corresponding facilities.

In order fo avoid disrupting the normal management of the
Applus+ Group, the exercise of the faculties of information shall be
channelled through the Chairman, who shall address the
Director's requests, providing him/her with the information directly
or making him/her available the appropriate inferfocutors at the
relevant level of the organization.

In the event that the information request is declined, delayed, or
not properly addressed, the Director requesting the information
may reiterate his/her request fo the Audit Commitfee which,
having heard the Chairman, and the Director, shall decide
accordingly.

The informafion requested may only be refused when, in the
opinion of the Chairman and the Audit Committes, it is
unnecessary or prejudicial to the corporate interests. Such refusal
shall not be possible when the reguest is supporfed by the
majority of the Direcfors.”

Article 31.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that “As the Chairman of the Board of Directors is responsible for
the effective operation and functioning of the Board of Directors, it
shall be required to ensure that the Direcfors are provided with
sufficient information beforehand; (...)"

C.1.42 State whether the company has established any rules requiring
directors to inform the company —and, if applicable, resign from
their position— in cases in which the credit and reputation of the
company may be damaged, and if so provide a detailed
description:

Yes No [_]

Describe the rules
Article 17.2 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
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C.1.43

C.1.44

C.1.45

that:

"Directors must tend their resignation to the Board of Directors
and, where considered appropriate by the Board, formalize the
appropriate resignation in the following circumstances:
(@ ...
() ..; | _
(c) When they are affected by any of the incompatibility
or prohibitions provisions legally established;
(c) If they are severely reprimanded by the Board of
Directors on the basis of a report by the Appointments
and Remuneration Commiltee as a result of having
breached their duties as Direcfors; or
{e} When their continued presence on the Board of
Directors may jeopardize the interests of the Company.

When a Director is removed from its office before the end of the
term of office foifowing its resignation or for whatever other
reason, the Director shalf explain the reasons for doing so in a
letfer addressed to all the membeis of the Board of Directors.
Even if said removal is communicated as a relevant fact, the
reasons for said rermoaval will be included in the Annual Corporate
Governance Report.”

State whether any member of the board of directors has
informed the company that such member has become subject to
an order for further criminal prosecution upon indictment or that
an order for the commencement of a bench trial has been issued
against such member for the commission of any of the crimes
contemplated in section 213 of the Companies Act:

Yes [ ] No

State whether the board of directors has analysed the case. If
50, provide a duly substantiated explanation of the decision
adopted regarding whether or not the director should remain
in office or, if applicable, describe the actions taken by the
board of directors through the date of this report or that it
plans to take.

Describe the significant agreements entered into by the company
that go into effect, are amended, or terminate in the event of a
change in control at the company as a result of a takeover bid,
and effects thereof.

The Multicurrency Facilities Agreement signed by the Company on 7
May 2014 with certain financial institutions includes eary maturity
clauses in the event of a change in control, in standard terms for
contracts of this kind.

Furthermore, as reflected in the Prospectus for the listing of the
Company shares, the pian to deliver restricted stock units (‘RSUs") in
favour of certain executives of the Company's group {the "RSU Plan”)
foresees that, in the event of a change in control in the Company's
group, afl units to which these executives are entitled under said RSU
Plan will be delivered in advance,

Identify on an aggregate basis and provide a detailed description
of the agreements between the company and its governing
bedies, management or employces that provide for indemnities,
guarantee or "golden parachute” clauses upon resignation or
termination without cause, or if the labour relationship is
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terminated as a result of a takeover hid or other type of
transaction.

Number of beneficiaries: 8

Type of beneficiary
Chief Executive Officer and managers who report to him
Description of agreement

The company has entered into severance payment arrangements
("blindajes™) with the Chief Executive officer and seven (7)
members of the senior management team who report to him. The
amounts payable to senior management pursuant to the
severance payment arrangements may be determined by
reference to one of the three following parameters, as applicabie:
(i) a compensation equal to twice the gross annual compensation
received by the relevant senior manager in the year immediately
preceding termination of employment; (ii} a gross compensation
equal to twice the net annual monetary compensation received
by thé relevant senior manager in the year immediately
preceding termination of employment after withholding taxes; or
(iil) a compensation (net of tax) equal to the greater of (x} twice
the net annual monetary compensation received by the relevant
senior manager in the year immediately preceding termination of
employment, and {y) the amount equal to 45 days of salary
received by the relevant senior manager per year of empioyment
with & 42 month limit.

Pursuant to the arrangements entered into by the group, certain
senior managers (including the CEQ) are entitled to severance
payments in case: (i) their employment is ferminated by the
group at will, except in case of fair disciplinary dismissal
(“despido disciplinario procedente™) declared by a final judgment;
in some of the cases {not including the CEO}: {ii} in the event
they decide to early terminate their employment with the group,
except in case of resignation {"dimision”).

In addition to these 8 managers, there are others in the
company, who do not report directly to the CEO and have
severance payment arrangements (“blindaje”).

State whether such agreements must be reported to and/or
approved by the decision-making bodies of the company or

its group:
General
Board of directors shareholders
‘meeting
Decision-making body NO NG
approving the provisions
YES | NO
X
s information about these provisions provided to the
|shareholders at the general shareholders' meeting?

c.2 Committees of the board of directors
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Describe all of the commitiees of the board of directors, the

C.21
members thereof, and the proportion of proprietary and
independent directors of which they are comprised:

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Name Position Class
MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIIO MEMBER EXECUTIVE
MR. ALEX WAGENBERG ;
BONDAROVSCHI MEMBER PROPRIETARY
MR. PEDRQ DE ESTEBAN
FERRER MEMBER PROPRIETARY
% executive directors 25.00%
% proprietary directors 50.00%
% independent directors 25.00%
% other external C.00%
AUDIT COMMITTEE
. Name Position Class
MR. ERNESTO GERARDO
MATA LOPEZ CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR. JOSEP MARIA MEMBER
PANICELLO PRIME PROPRIETARY
MR. MARIO PARDO RQOJO MEMBER PROPRIETARY
% executive direétors 0.00%
% proprietary directors 67.00%
% independent directors 33.00%
% other external 0.00%
APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Name Position Class
MR. JOHN DANIEL - i
HOFMEISTER CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR. RICHARD CAMPBELL MEMBER
NELSON INDEPENDENT
MR. ALEX WAGENBERG MEMBER
_ BONDAROVSCHI PROPRIETARY
% executive directors 0.00%
% proprietary directors 33.00%
% independent directors 57.00%
% other external 0.00%

C.22 Complete the following table with information regarding the
number of female directors comprising the committees of the
board of directors for the last four financial years:

Number of female directors
Year 2014 Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011
Number % Number % Number % Number %
. . o 0,00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00%
Executive Committee
0, 0, 0, 0,
Audit Committee 0 0,00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00% ] 0,00%
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Appointments
and
Remuneration
Committee

0,00% 0 0.00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00%

C.2.3

State whether the audit committee has the following duties:

Yes No

Supervise the process of preparation and the integrity of the
financial information relating to the company and, if applicable, to
the group, monitoring compliance with legal requirements, the
proper delimitation of the scope of consolidation, and the comrect
application of accounting principles.

X

Periodically review the internal control and risk management X
systems, in order for the main risks to be properly identified,
managed and made known.

Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit
area; make proposals regarding the selection, appointment, re-
election, and withdrawal of the head of the internal audit area;
propose the budget for such area; receive periodic inforrhation
regarding its activities; and verify that senior management takes
into account the conclusions and recommendations contained in
its reports.

Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby the employees may
give notice, on a confidential basis and, if deemed appropriate,
anonymously, of any potentially significant irregularities, especially
of a financial and accounting nature, that they notice at the
company.

Submit to the board proposals for the selection, appointment, re- X
election, and replacement of the external auditor, as well as the
centractual terms under which it should be hired.

Regqularly receive from the external auditor information regarding X
the audit plan and the results of the implementation thereof, and
verify that senior management takes its recommendations into
account.

Ensure the independence of the external auditor X

c.24

Describe the rules of organisation and operation of, and the
duties assigned to, each of the board committees.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

It consists of at least three members and no more than five, to be
chosen amongst and by the Board of Directors, which may
permanently delegate to it all the Board's powers, except for those
which according to the law, the By-laws or the Regulations of the
Board of Direclors are its exclusive competencies. As an exception,
the Supervisory Committee may take decisions in relation to the
matters coniained in article 7.2 sections (b) and (c) of the Regulations
of the Board of Directors, when there are reasons of urgency, and
with subsequent rafification by the full Board of Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The members of the Audit Committee are appeinted by the Board of

Directors. The Audit Committee will consist of three to five members
of the Board of Directors, based on their knowledge and experience in
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accounting, auditing and risk management matters.
The Audit Committee will be in charge of:

- Informing the General Sharehoiders meeting on the matters
amongst it competence that shareholders may bring up in
them.

- Supervising the preparation of annual accounts and
management reports, both individual and consolidated, in
order to be drawn up by the Board of Directors according to
law.

- Informing the Board of Directors, in order o be drawn up
according to law, about the accuracy and reliability of the
annual accounts and management reports, both individual
and consclidaied, including any periodic financial data
forwarded to the markets.

- Issuing any reports and propgsals requested by the Beard
of Directors or its Chairman, and others deemed pertinent
for the adequate performarice of its tasks.

- Supervising compliance with all internal codes of conduct
and corporate  governance rules, particularly the
Regulations of the Board of Directors, in the terms provided
therein.

- Ensuring that the company and auditor uphold current rules
on the provision of non-audit services, limits on the
auditor's workload, rules regarding the rieed for a turnover
in the signatory auditor of the auditing report and, in
general, all other provisions established to guarantee the
auditors” impartiality. :

- The Audit Committee will issue a report each year, giving
its opinion about the auditors” impartiality. This report, in
any case, will refer to the provision of additional services by
the auditors to the company or to any other entity directly or
indirectly related thereto.

APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

It consists of at least three and a maximum of five Directors,
appointed by the Board of Directors for a period not exceeding their
term as Directors and without prejudice to being re-elected, insofar as
they are also Directors. The Board of Directors will designate the
members of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, based
on the knowledge, skills and experience of the Directors and the tasks
entrusted to the Appointments and Remuneration Commiitee.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee will be in charge of;

- Reporting any proposed appointments and re-elections of
Executive and Proprietary Directors, making proposals to
appoint Independent Directors.

- Reporting any proposed removals of members of the Board
of Directors.

- Verifying the nature of each Director, checking that
requirements are met to be classified as executive,
independent or proprietary.

- Evaluating the competences, knowledge and necessary
experience on the Board of Directors, consequently
defining the necessary candidate tasks and skills to cover
each vacancy, evaluating the necessary time and
dedication in order to adequately perform their tagk.

- Examining or arranging, as deemed adeguate, the
succession of the Chairman and top executive and, if
necessary, making propesals to the Board of Directors in
order for this succession to lake place in an orderly and
well planned manner.

- Annually reporting on performance of tasks by the
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Chairman of the Board of Directors and top executive of the
Company.

- Reporting any appeintments and removals of the Secretary
of the Board of Directors and senior executives proposed
by the top executive to the Board of Directors.

- Providing information to the Board of Directors about any
gender diversity matters, ensuring that when new
vacancies arise, selection procedures have no implicit
biases that hinder the selection of female directors,;
ensuring that the company deliberately searches for, and
includes amongst potential candidates, women who meet
the professional profile sought.

- Preparing and keeping a record of situations involving
Directors and senior executives of the company, receiving
and safeguarding in this register any personal details
provided by Directors, as provided in article 29 of the
Regulations of the Board of Directors.

- Receiving any information provided by Directors.

- Proposing to the Board of Directors a remuneration policy
for Directors and senior executives.

- Proposing to the Board of Directors the individual
remuneration of executive Directors and other contractual
conditions.

- Proposing to the Board of Directors the basic conditions of
senior executive contracts.

- Ensuring that the remuneration policy established by the
company is followed.

C.2.5 State, if applicable, the existence of regulations of the board
committees, where such regulations may be consulted and the
amendments made during the financial year. Also state if any
annual report of the activities performed by each committee has
heen voluntarily prepared.

Rules for Board Committees are included in the Regulations of the
Board of Directors, which establish their competences, composition,
procedures, etc.; these are available for consultation both on the
CNMV website and the www applus com corporate website, and may
be directly accessed through the following link:
hito:/fvasre applus comfesfinvestorRelations/Corporate-governance.

See details in section €.1.18 rega{rding amendments of articles 7 and
38 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors.

C.2.6 State whether the composition of the executive committee
reflects the participation of the different directors within the
board based on their category:

Yes No [::]

D. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND INTRAGROUP TRANSACTIONS

DA.

Identify the competent body and describe any procedures for approving
related-party and intragroup transactions.

Competent body for approving related-party transactions

of Diraciors.

The Board of Directors, as per Article 7.2(c) of the Regulations of the Board
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Procedure for the approval of related-party transactions

Further to article 22.4 of the Regulations of the Board of Direclors, “fransactions
between the Company and Direclors, significant shareholders, and shareholders
Eepresented on the Board of Directors, or with persons associated with them,
st be authorized by the Board of Directors on the basis of a prior report by the
Budit Committee. However, the authorization of the Board of Directors and of the
teport of the Audit Committee will not be necessary for Related-Partly
dransactions that meet the following three conditions:

1

n (a) They are carried out under the terms of confracts whose conditions

are standardized and applied to a large number of clients;

(b}  They are implemented at prices or rates generally set by the person
supplying the good or service in question; and

{c)  The value of these fransactions does not exceed 1% of the annual
turnover of the Company.

TeSTa s

2. The Board of Directors shall decide on Related-Party Transactions on the
tasis of a prior report by the Audit Committee. In addition to refraining from
lexercising or delegating their vote, Directors affected by said transactions must
deave the meeling room while the Board of Directors deliberates and votes on
them.”

a
pproval of related-party transactions has been delegated, and if so, state
the body or persons to which the delegation has been made.

Arficle 7.2 of the Regulations of the Beoard of Directors foresegs that the
competencies of the Board of Directors set forth paragraphs (b} and (c) of said
ariicle, which. include related-party transactions, may be adopted in urgent cases
by the Supervisory Committee, and subsequently ratified by the full Board of
Directors

D.2. Describe those transactions that are significant due to the amount or
subject- matter thereof between the company or entities of its group and
the company's significant shareholders:

D.3. Describe those transactions that are significant due to the amount or
subject-matter thereof between the company or entities of its group and the
company's directors or officers:

D.4. Report the significant transactions made by the company with other
entities belonging to the same group, provided they are not eliminated in
the preparation of the consolidated accounts and they are not part of the
ordinary course of business of the company as to their purpose and
conditions.

In any case, report any intragroup fransacfion with entities established in
countries or territories considered to be tax havens:

D.5. State the amount of transactions with other related parties.
0 (thousands of Euros)

D.6. Describe the mechanisms used to detect, determine, and resolve
potential conflicts of interest between the company and/or its group,
and its directors, officers, or significant shareholders.

A rtiste
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conflict
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*1. Directors must abstain from aftending and intervening in deliberations
in relation to issues in which they have a personal interest, and from
voting the corresponding resclutions.

2. A Director will be considered to have a personal inferest when the
issue affects the Director itself or:

(a) The spouse of the Director or a person related to the Director up to
fourth (4th) degree of kinship, inclusive; or

(b) A company in which it has a significant shareholding. A
shareholding wilf be considered significant when the Director, either
in its own name, or jointly with persons with whom it has a
relationship such as thaf described in (a) above, holds more than
five per cent (5%) of voling or economic rights or in which, while not
meeting this requirement, can appoint at least one member of their
management body.

3. The Director must provide the Board of Directors with due notice of
any situation that could constitute a conflict of interest with the interests
of the Company or of other companies from the Applus+ Group.

4. Transactions between the Company and Directors, significant

shareholders, and sharehoiders represented on the Board of Directars,

or with persons associated with them, must be authorized by the Board

of Directors on the basis of a prior report by the Audit Commiltee.

However, the authorization of the Board of Directors and of the report of

the Audit Committee will not be necessary for Related-Party

Transactions that meet the following three conditions:

(a) They are carried out under the terms of contracts whose conditions
are standardized and applied to a large number of clients;

(b) They are implemented at prices or rates generally set by the person
supplying the good or service in question; and

(¢} The value of these fransactions does not exceed 1% of the annual
turnover of the Company.

5. The Board of Directors shall decide on Related-Party Transactions on
the basis of a prior reporf by the Audit Committee. In addition to
refraining from exercising or delegating their vote, Directors affected by
said fransactions must leave the mesfing room while the Board of
Directors deliberates and vofes on them.

6. In any event, relevant fransactions of any nature befween a Director of
the Company and of companies within the Applus+ Group must be
recorded in the Annual Corporate Governance Report. This requirement
also applies to relevant fransactions between the Company and ils
significant shareholders. The notes to the annual accounts must also
include ftransactions conducted by Directors with the Company and
companies within the Applus+ Group when said tfransactions are not
related to the ordinary course of business of the Company, or do not
take place under normal market conditions.”

D.7. Is more than one company of the group listed in Spain?
ves [ | Mo
Identify the subsidiaries listed in Spain: N/A
Listed subsidiary
Identify if each activity areas and eventual business relationships have ben

public and accurately, as well as those of the listed subsidiary with the
other companies of the aroup:
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Define the business relationships between listed parent Company and
listed subsidiary, and between the lafter and other companies of the group.

Identify the mechanisms foreseen to resolve potential interest conflicts
between the listed subsidiary and other companies of the group:

Mechanisms foreseen to resolve potential interest conflicts

E. RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

E.1 Explain the scope of the company’s Risk Management System.

The company has a Corporate Risk Map, where critical risks
which from a strategic, governance, compliance and financing
reporting point of view may affect the achievement of strategic
objectives have been identified.

This risk map has incorperated critical facters, based on the
group's lines of activity, geographical areas where it operates
and business divisions as well as the risks factors considered as
critical in connection with the scope of the support functions,
such as finance, human resources and legal services.

Critical risks have been identified by prioritizing matters based on
the volume of business affected, the possibility of stopping
transactions due to risk materialization and potential reputational
damage in the event of an incident.

The Board of Directors is assisted by the Audit Committee which
periodically reviews the internal control systems and risk
management and supervises and informs on the adequacy of the
sysiem to evaluate and internally contrfol relevant risks.

E.2 Identify the decision-making bodies of the company
responsible for preparing and implementing the Risk
Management System.

In accordance with article 7.2 (vii} of its Regulations, the Board of
Directors of the company is the responsible of defining risk
strategy and control policy, as well as periodic monitoring of the
internal information and control systems, by optimizing a cost-
benefit raiio, in order to:

Reach medium-term strategic objectives

Safeguard sharehoelders value

Guarantee the group’s results and reputation

Defend the interests of company shareholders and
interest groups

The Audit Committee, in accordance with article 39.7 (a) of the
Regulations of the Board of Directors, is responsible of
periodically reviewing the internal control systems and to manage
the risks, so main risks are identified, processed and informed
appropriately as well as discussing with auditors the significant
weak points of the internal control system ouflined during the audit
process. To that purpose, the Commission relies on the
supervision tasks carried out by the company's Internal Audit
Management. Supervision of the risk control systems includes
approval of a model and a periodic follow-up, which will depend on
criticality and importance.
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E.3

Risk management is made by the Chief Executive Officer, the
heads of the corporate functional areas, and the Executive Vice
President of each business division in accordance with their scope
of activity, according to acceptable risk levels for the Company.

The Internal Audit Management is in charge of supervising
compliance with risk tolerance levels, the effectiveness of control
measures associated fo critical risks and  supervised
implementation of the necessary action/respanse plans, which will
be monitored as applicable initially at a corporate level by the

affected functions.

Point out the principal risks that could affect the achievement
of business goals.

The risk map of the company contemplates thase risks that can
have a significant impact on the results of the company and is
group, to their best knowledge. The risks referred fo in said risk
map can be grouped in different types:

1. risks arising from the group's organizational model

2. risks which are inherent to business activities

3. risks related to regulatory compliance in the countries
where the group operates (scope: legal, tax and human
resources, efc).

4. financial risks

With regards to the first one, the main risk arising from the
particular group 's organizational model would be the risk of non-
compliance by the responsible of the group's subsidiaries with the
Delegation of Authority internal Policy {predefined scope for
decision-making)

With regards fo the second one, the main business risks group
would be:

s Adequate monitoring of businesses entered into by the
group based on long-term contracts such as concessions
in the business of vehicle inspection in Spain, Europe
and America.

s Adequate supervision of formal and quality standards of
the service, when provided according to approved
qualifications. In this sense, group has defined an
insurance strategy, which includes coverage of third-
party damages arising as a consequence of the services
rendered by the group in all sectors in which it operates.

» Risks related to economic, social and politicai situation in
the geographical areas in which the Company operates
and the main macroeconomic indicators that may impact
in the future short and medium term in the results of the
group, particularly considering its wide geographical
implementation.

+ Retention of key staff for the group.

In respect of financials, the Company manages and monitors risks
that may impact the results of the group.

e Liquidity risk and leverage of the group.

= Risk of overvaluing cerfain significant asseis of the
group, such as goodwill, intangible assets generated by
inorganic growth and tax assets.

¢ Exchange rate risk derived from relevant international

activity.
a Interest rate risk {which could increase Har meoat Af e
- MWL 1TUG 198 (VFIHLLT Lol BiliToac uic CO8L Of 13
debt).
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E.4

E.5

Identify whether the entity has a risk tolerance level.

Tolerance levels are defined in the risk valuation matrix,
constituting the starting point to assess risks qualified as inherent
and residual.

Tolerance levels are defined according to the following
parameters :

+  Sustained guality standards for the group

+« Business volume affected and potential impact on
business sustainability

*  Impact on reputation and business continuity

+  Compliance with applicable law

»  Probable materialization

For risks considered as critical, given the impact of their potential
materialization on the achievement of the group’s objectives,
specific tolerance levels are defined indicating action guidelines,
achievement timeframe, managers, follow-up indicators;
furthermore, the frequency and content are defined of the
information provided to the governing bodies for supervision and
decision-making.

State what risks have materialize during the financiaf year.

The risks which have materialized during year 2014 and resulted
in a significant impact on the group's results are:

* As a result of completing in 2014 certain contracts in the
oil & gas sector, along with a slow-down in cerain client
investments and a fall in the Brent barrel price, income
and profit growth in divisions focusing on the oil & gas
sector (RTD and Velosi) has been affected.

» In the year 2014, the accreditation in Spain for
environment, quality and management systems
certification has been temporarily suspended.
Suspension does not allow issuance of new certificates,
meaning certificates to new clients or existing clients who
need to renew their certificates (duration is of three
years). Consequently, the monitoring activities have
continued and the impact in the turnover of the group has
not been significant. it is foreseen that said accreditation
will be recovered during the first four month period of the
year 2015.

Events occurred in 2014 related to risks covered by the group
which have not had a significant impact on the group's results are:

+ The group was considering the risk involved in the
succession of the Executive Vice President of the Velosi
Division, who had anhounced plans for retirement.
Ramoén Fernandez Armas, Executive Vice President of
Norcontrol, also became the senior manager of Velosi's
business. Mr. Fernandez, with more than 20 years in the
group, will guarantee this succession.

»  Given the economic scenario in Spain, the group, as in
previous years, has continued to implement action plans
aimed at cost optimization. However, the weight of
group’s business in Spain is currently no longer as
relevant as in the past, as it does not represent more
than 16% of the group’s fotal turmnover figure.

+  The Company performed impairment tests for all cash
generating units in retafion to goodwill and intangibles
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E.6

assets concluding that the record of additional
impairment was not necessary in 2014.

The group has not been immersed in further litigation that could
have a significant impact on its results and still open litigations
have not led to events which could have forced to modify previous
fiscal years” accounting estimates.

Describe the plans for responding to and supervising the
entity's main risks.

The group has an updated risk map that foresees relevant risks
from a strategic, governance, compliance and financial reporting
point of view that may affect the achievement of strategic
objectives, including the risk of fraud.

To this end, the Applus group has implemented mitigating
measures to said risks, in order to try to minimize its potential
impact. Furthermore, for all other risks not yet covered an action
plan has been designed, assigning managers of each initiative
and an execution timetable, in order to start up the necessary
measures to reduce any potential impact should they materialize.

These measures are generally executed by the group's
Management. The Audit Committee and company's Board of
Directors, eventually, are the bodies in charge of supervising and
approving the measures conducted.

In addition, the Company has defined an appropriate insurance
strategy, which includes coverage of third-party damages arising
as a consequence of the services rendered by the Company and
its subsidiaries in sectors in which they operate.

INTERNAL RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE PROCESS OF ISSUING FINANCIAL INFORMATION (ICFR)

F.1.1 What bodies andfor functions are responsible for: (i) the

existence and maintenance of an adequate and effective internal
controi system over financial reporting (ICFR); (i) the
implementation thereof; and (iii) oversight thereof.

The Internal Control System over Financial Reporting ("ICFR") of
the company and its group is part of its general internal control
system and is configured as the set of processes that the Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, Management and group staff carry out
to provide reasonable security as regards the reliability of financial
information published by the markets.

The company has implemented an internal control and risk
management tool {GRC Applus+) to enable the continuous
menitoring and supervision of the action plans and incidents
identified when drawing up and reviewing this financial information.

Supervision of the ICFR is within the functions of the Audit
Committee and is carried out through supervision actions
conducted by the Corporate Internal Audit Management. Since
2011, an Internal Control Model over financial reporting is being
developed in order to guarantee its reliability.

The Cerporate Financiai Management of the company carries out

the following tasks in relation to Internal Control over financial

reporting:
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F.1.2.

- To review and approve accounting Policies and Manuals
incorporated info the group’s Financial Management intranet.

- To establish and provide information on the necessary
procedures to ensure an adequate internal control of financial
reporting.

- To establish and maintain internal controls over financiat
reporting, in order to guarantee its reliability and ensure that all
reports, facts, transactions or other relevant items are
communicated in due time and form.

The internai control model for financial information of the group has
three separate areas of control: (i} self-evaluation of the persons in
charge of critical processes and control measures, {ii} review of the
financial evaluation process by the Financial Managements in each
division and by the Corporate Financial Management in the
consolidation process, and (iii) evaluation of the efficiency and
effectiveness of risk control and identification measures by the
Corporate Internal Audit Management.

Whether any of the following are in place, particularly as
regards the financial information preparation process:

* Departments and/or mechanisms in charge of; (i) the design
and revision of the organisational structure; (ii) clearly
defining the lines of responsibility and authority, with an
appropriate distribution of work and duties; and (iii} ensuring
that there are sufficient procedures for the proper
dissemination thereof at the entity.

Initially the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Coiporate
Financial Management are in charge of designing and reviewing
the organisational structure for the presentation of financial
information; the Management will be responsible for changing such
inforrmation if deemed appropriate.

Likewise, the lines of authority and responsibility of its relevant
processes have been defined by formalizing a Standard Model for
Autherity and Responsibility Delegation, which includes all of the
group’s critical decisions that may eventually affect the drafting and
review of financial information. Furthermore, the Corporate
Financial Management has a functional flowchart of the Financial
Management to cover alt of the group's business divisions.

As regards the process to prepare financial information, instructions
are issued by the Corporate Financial Management, establishing
specific guidelines and responsibilities for each financial closing, as
well as closing procedures reflected in the Internal IFRS Manual,
covering a description and accounting plan of the company's
financial reporting system.

* Code of conduct, body that approves Iit, degree of
dissemination and instruction, principles and values included
(indicating whether the récording of transactions and the
preparation of financial information are specifically
mentioned), body in charge of reviewing breaches and of
proposing corrective actions and penalties.

The company has a Code of Ethics and an Anti-Corruption Paolicy,
approved by the Board of Directors, which specifically refers to the
registration of operations and drawing up of financial information,
as well as compliance with the law and accounting policies of the
group, inter alia. Both have been signed by the Management,
intermediate managers and practically all of the group's employees.

Furthermore, the Code of Ethics includes a commitment to strictly
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F.2

F.21,

comply with the obligation to provide reliable financial information,
prepared according to applicable regulations, as well as the
responsibility binding employees and officers, to ensure that this is
s0, both by adequately executing their tasks and by informing the
governing bodies of any circumstance that may affect this
commitment.

All employees are aware of the Code of Ethics trough periodical
training sessions.

On 2012 the Group Ethics Committee (GEC) was created, which
meets every quarter and, amongst other matters, manages and
processes any reports received through the whistieblowing
channel, including any other incident related to ethical matters. It is
the body in charge of analysing infringements of the mentioned
regulations and proposing where applicable corrective actions and
disciplinary sanctions. Furthermore, in 2014 a Chief Compliance
Officer has been appointed, effective 1st January 2015, to reinforce
the correct implementation of the Code of Ethics within the group
and the commitments of the GEC.

« Whistleblowing channel that makes it possible to report any
irregularities of a financial or accounting nature to the Audit
Committee, as well as any possible breach of the code of
conduct and irregular activities at the organisation, specifying,
if appropriate, whether it is confidential.

The company has established a an internal whistleblowing channel
which allows employees or third parties to report any facts that may
be contrary to integrity and professional ethics, covered by the
principles of the Code of Ethics.

All communications are received, analysed and followed through by
the Group Ethics Committee (GEC) and by the Chief Compliance
Officer. All reports and their processing are handled on a
confidential basis. There is a unique whistleblowing channel for the
entire group and is available on the corporate Intranet.

* Regular training and update programmes for personnel
involved in the preparation and review of financial information,
as well as in the evaluation of the internal control system over
financial reporting, covering at least accounting standards,
auditing, internal control and risk management.

In order to periodically recycle and train the staff involved in the
preparation and review of financial information, continuous
correspondence is held with exiernal auditoers and other
independent professionals (advisors) on relevant matters in
corporate terms (basically accounting regulations and the
preparation of financial information, as well as tax laws).

Any training needs detected and provided at a corporate level are
extended to all other Chief Financial Officers in the group's
subsidiaries, through the Finance Community Meeting held each
year, where training is a key point of the agenda; individual
meetings are also held with local financial representatives if
deemed appropriate.

Risk assessment of financial information indicates at least the
following:

What are the main features of the risk identification process,
including the process of identifying the risks of error or fraud,
with respect to:

« Whether the process exists and is documented.
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The group has developed risk matrixes and control measures for
relevant business processes (sales, purchases, fixed assets,
treasury, human rescurces and payrolls, etc.), specifically for each
subsidiary, which are relevant for the consolidated statements of
the group. In particular, this has been carried out for subsidiaries
which, in aggregate, represent more than 80% of the sales of the

group.

* Whether the process covers all the objectives of financial
information (existence and occurrence; completeness;
assessiment; presentation, breakdown and comparability, and
rights and obligations), whether it is updated and how often.

The methodology used to select the risks to be taken into account
is COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations for the
Treadway Commission).

The criteria used to locate the most relevant processes are
quantitative (materiality) and qualitative (business risk and visibility
amongst third parties), based on the most relevant accounting
items and notes included in the Annual Report. All identified risks
are prioritized in the professional's opinion, following a series of
variables (level of process automation, whether the process is
known and/or whether it is necessary to use judgments and
estimates). The risk -of fraud is indirectly identified insofar as
material errors may arise in the financial information.

Once the most relevant risks are selected, the necessary controt
measures are selected and designed for their mitigation of
management, and the necessary action plans are established to
improve control surroundings; critical control measures are
systematically supervised and reviewed by the Corporate Internal
Audit Depariment.

Any risks classified as relevant are reviewed at least once a vear,
further to the certification/evaluation of effective internal control
carried out by the persons in charge. This review intends to adjust
the risks to changing circumstances in which the group is
operaling, particularly if there are changes in the organisation,
computer systems, regulations, products or the market situation.

+ The existence of a process for the identification of the scope
of consolidation, taking into account, among other matters,
the possible existence of complex corporate structures,
holding entities or special purpose entities.

Furthermore, at the last corporate instance, the possibility is
contemplated of errors in certain processes not connected to
specific types of transactions with impact on a subsidiary, which
may be relevant when preparing financial information, such as the
closing process in each subsidiary and, particularly, in consclidated
statements. In the consolidation process, the group has considered
all inherent risks, ensuring that the process is adeguately
configured and executed, as well as an adequate definition of the
consalidation perimeter.

« Whether the process takes into account the effects of other
types of risks (operational, technological, financial, legal,
repufational, environmental, etc.} to the extent that they affect
the financial statements.

The process to locate possible errors in financial information takes
into account the effects of other risk typelogies, which are

evaluated and managed by various corporate units. Nevertheless,
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in order to identify financial information risks these other typologies
are not expressly identified.

+ What corporate governance body of the entity supervises
the process.

The Management Body that supervises the ICFR is the Audit
Committee, which is supported by the Internal Audit Management
when executing iis tasks.

The group has implemented the Applus GRC tool for internal
control management at various levels. The following advantages
are provided by this tool in SCIIF matters:

« Availability, in centralized form, of all ICFR documentation
and managernent for the group, in a homogenous
manner.

» Internal Control system over financial reporting is
integrated into business and corporate processes,
enabling each organizational unit in charge to periodically
evaluate its control, to provide the necessary evidence
and to annually execute the ICFR internal certification
process.

» Automatic workflows are used to manage control
activities and to execute action plans.

+ |t constitules a back-up tool for the ICFR supervision and
testing process carried out by the Internal Audit
Department.

+« ]t allows the necessary information for ICFR reporting fo
be obtained and supported.

F.3 Control activities

F.31

Indicate whether at least the following are in place and
describe their main features:

Procedures for review and authorisation of financial
information, and description of the internal financial
information control system to be published in the securities
market; indicating the persons or divisions responsible
therefor, as well as documentation describing the flows of
activities and controls {including those relating to risk of fraud)
of the various types of transactions that could materially affect
the financial statements, including the closing process and the
specific review of significant judgements, estimates,
assessments, and projections.

At first instance, responsibility for preparing monthly, quarterly, six-
monthly and annual financial information is entrusted to the Chief
Financial Officer in each Applus group subsidiary.

The persons in charge of reviewing and authorising the financial
information are the Financial Management in each Division and the
Corporate Consolidation Management.

The Audit Committee, with support from the Internal Audit
Management, supervises the ICFR internal conirol model and
forwards to the Board of Directors the conclusions obtained in this
process.

ICFR documentation and evidence of execution and supervision,
as well as significant facts and action plans, are managed through
an internal contrel and risk management tool of the Applus group
(Applus GRC). As indicated in F.2.1 above, in each subsidiary the
activity and controi directly related to transactions that may have a
material effect on the financial statements are provided with a
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F.3.2

description of implemented control measures. Control matrixes by
process document the foregoing, and information is provided on the
control activity, the risk covered, the person in charge of execution
and the frequency of control. These matrixes are managed threugh
a corporate tool (Applus GRC) which enables an annual
certification that the control matrix is-still being updated, as well as
a periodic evaluation by the persons in charge of executing the
control measures on their exed¢ution and effectiveness.

In each subsidiary, the foliowing information is available for critical
processes in relation to each control activity:

Description of the process and sub-process

+« Description of financial information risks associated to
various processes, sub-processes and conirol cbjectives

+ Definition of control activities designed to mitigate the
risks identified

« Description of the process managers, risks and confrol
activities

+  Classification of control activities already implemented or
outstanding (action plans)

* |level of automation of control activities (manual or
automatic)

s Classification of control activities distinguishing between
preventive or detective.

« Definition of control execution frequency

s Definition of evaluation frequency by the Internal Audit
Department

=  Definition of the evidence required

Each one of the closing processes carried out in the various
divisions is treated as a single process. The same applies to all the
closing activities conducted within the corporation, in relation to the
consolidation process and drafting of annual accounts.

A specific review of any judgments, estimates, valuations,
provisions and projections that are relevant fo quantify certain
assets, liabilities revenues and expenses itemized in the annual
accounts invalves the cortinuous supervision of the Comorate
Financial Management of the Applus group.

The control measures used to mitigate or manage possible risks in
financial information include some related to the most relevant
computer applications, such as control over user access permits or
the integrity of information when it is transferred from one
application fo another.

Policies and procedures of internal control of information
systems (including, among others, security of access, control
of changes, operation thereof, operational continuity and
segregation of duties) that provide support for the significant
processes of the entity in connection with the preparation and
publication of financial information,

The group uses SAP BPC as a common consolidation and
reporting system. This software is being used by all group
subsidiaries, irrespective of the degree to which each subsidiary
uses SAP R3 as a financial system, or uses another system.

When identifying the risk of material errors in financial information
two control levels apply: (i) in each subsidiary, as part of the ICFR,
control measures are used to ensure that all information reported
through SAP BPC is consistent with local information systems, if
different from SAP; (i) in corporate terms, there are automatic and
manual measures to contrel the main application in order to
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generate financial information in SAP BPC, guaranteeing that the
consolidation process is correct.

In addition, as regards the security of information, the Corporate
Systems Management has established policies to operate
information and data secuwrity systems (including  availability
parameters due to their impact on business continuity and data
integrity}, containing minimum requirements to be met by any
Applus group system.

The following security policies have been established by the group:
i} Classification of information; i) Management of system access;
iii) Prevention of Data Leaks; iv) identification and maintenance of
critical applications; v} Back-Up Copies; vi) Restrictions on Internet
and e-mail use; vii) Data encryption; viii) Agreements with third
parties; ix) Protection of equipment; x} Legal compliance; xi)
Nofification of incidents; and xii) Infrastructure licences and use.

These policies have enabled Applus to implement a Data Security
Policy.

In operating continuity terms, the group has improved the already
high level of availability of its central data systems, held in a Main
Datacenter in Madrid, with a Disaster Recovery (DR) solution. This
DR is hosted in a Secondary Datacenter in Barcelona, which is
connected through a high-speed line to the Main Datacenter.
Thanks to a constant replica of data, the DR may provide, in a
matter of hours, the most critical applications for the business, in
the unlikely case of an évent of force majeure (fire, flood,
earthquake, efc.) that renders the Main Datacenter inoperative.

Additionally, a series of key supplementary control measures are
defined and executed by members of tHe consolidation team, in
order to strengthen the trust in the data systems used to generate
financiat information.

The group has a plan to improve and monitor information systems
as regards the segregation of functions, as well as to incorporate in
the Audit Plan the supervision of these internal control sysfems as
regards the segregation of functions in financial information
systems.

tnternal control policies and procedures designed to supervige
the management of activities outscurced to third parties, as
well as those aspects of assessment, calculation or valuation
entrusted to independent experts, which may materially affect
the accounts.

In the group, third party activities that may be relevant to the
information generation process basically reside in the business
conducted in Spain. The group has outscurced its administration
and back-office tasks for its Spanish subsidiaries {except for the
IDIADA. division subsidiaries). In order to supervise outsourced
activities, it has appointed a manager in the Corporate Financial
Management. In this contractual relationship service level
agreements (SLA's) are defined to evaluate service quality and
integrity. Furthermore, the comporate accounting department in
charge of Spain has been assigned monthly tasks to review the
finaricial statements of any subsidiaries operating in Spain.

In the rest of the group, outsourced activities are sporadic or highly
centralized in very specific processes or sub-processes, such as
payroll preparation. These factors are considered a risk in the ICFR
medel for these companies, for which there is efficient and effective
associated control.
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F.4

F.4.1

F.4.2.

Whenever necessary, the group hires reports from independent
experts in order to obtain greater trust in matters that may have a
significant effect on the financial statements, such as Purchase
Price Allocation reports related fo wide-ranging acquisitions, the
valuation of financial instruments and advice in impairment tests
conducted on goodwill and intangible assets, which the group has
entered as assets. In all these cases, when hiring these services,
the group determines as part of the selection criteria the absence of
any doubt as to the supplier's competence, qualifications,
reputation and independence.

Information and communication

Indicate whether at least the following are in place and
describe their main features: .

A specific function charged with defining and updating
accounting policies (accounting policy area or department)
and with resolving questions or confiicts arising from the
interpretation thereof, maintaining fluid communications with
those responsible for operations at the organisation, as well
as an updated accounting policy manual that has been
communicated to the units through which the entity cperates.

The Corporate Financial Management is in charge of defining,
ypdating and disseminating accounting policies in order to draw up
finarcial information under IFRS-EU, and resolve any interpretation
doubts or conflicts. It keeps a communication flow with the
managers of operations and financial representatives in its various
divisions and subsidiaries.

The accounting Manual is updated each year and is published on
the Financial Management intranet, accessible by all the staff
involved in the drafting and review of financial information.
Eurthermore, at meetings held with corporate Chief Financial
Officers, division and subsidiary managers, training sessions are
provided on the interpretation and application of any novelties.
Finally, the GCorporate Einancial Management, through the
consolidation department, is entrusted with handling any doubts the
subsidiaries may have when applying their account reporting rules,
IFRS-EU.

in addition, the group’s external auditor, both of consolidated
statements and of the most representative subsidiaries of the
consolidated statements, will request that the financial infermation
reported by these subsidiaries be reviewed further to the principles
gathered in the group's Accounting Manual, i.e. IFRS-EU, bath in
the 12-month audit and the limited six-monthly review.

Mechanisms to capture and prepare financial information with
standardised formats, to be applied and used by all uniis of
the entity or the group, supporting the principal accounts and
the notes thereto, as well as the information provided on the
internal control system over financial reporting.-

The capture and preparation of information backing up the main
financiat statements of the Applus group Uuses the SAP-BPC
consolidation tool, which is integrated into fransactional systems of
sach subsidiary through automiatic and occasionally manual
systems for capture and validation. There is a single monthly
reporting, based on a homogenous accounting plan for all
companies. In addition, monthly reporting incorporates other
information necessary for the management of the Applus group,
also necessary to draw up notes on the consolidated Financial
Statements issued at the closing of the financial year and at the
end of the first six months. Conseguently, the monthily reporting of
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F.5.1.

all subsidiaries in SAP-BPC already automatically controls the
validation of financial statements reported and any additional
details requested.

The ICFR internal control  system, as already indicated,
incorporates an evaluation of controt activities both in the closing
process designed for sach subsidiary, and contral activities related
to the closing process conducted by the Consolidation Depariment
of the group.

Supervision of the operation of the system

indicate and describe the main features of at least the
following:

of Supervising the internal control system, including the
internal contro! System over financial reporting. Information is
also to be provided concerning the Scope of the assessment
of the internal control system over financial reporting
performed during the financial year angd on the procedurs
whereby the person or division charged with performing the
assessment reports the results thereof, whether the entity has
an action plan in place describing possible corrective
Mmeasures, and whether the impact thereof on financial
information has been considered,

The Audit Committee has approved the ICFR design criteria for the
group. At least once g quarter it supervises the outcome of all ICER
reviews conducted by the Internal Audit Department and, each
year, by the external auditor. Ultimately, it reviews ICFR information
gathered by the group in the Annua| Corporate Governance Report:

In the Applus group, the Audit Committee uses the Internet Audit
function to Supervise adequate Operation of the internal cantrot
system, including the ICFR, and ensures its independence.

The Internat Audit Management permanently supervises the action
plans idiari

meetings that are pericdically held.

The Internal Audit Management periodically informs the Financial
Management and Audit Committee of any significant weaknasses
in internal control discovered during ICFR reviews and in internal
audits of processes carried out over the year, as well as the leve] of
implementation of action plans and any mitigation measures
established,

Any future weaknesses in internal control identified in internal audit
reviews are catalogued according to criticality ag high, medium or
fow, based on the effect they may have if an error materializes in
the financial statements, These weaknesses are managed through
the Applus GRC application, for which g manager and timeframe
are established in order 1o implement an action plan, as well as
follow-up plans by the Internai Audit Deparimant.
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F.6

F.7

F.741

Whether it has a discussion procedure whereby the auditor (as
provided in the Technical Auditing Standards), the internal
audit function, and other experts can inform senior
management and the audit committee or the directors of the
entity of the significant internal control weaknesses detected
during the review of the annual accounts or such other reviews
as may have been entrusted to them. Information shall also bhe
provided on whether it has an action plan to seék to correct or
mitigate the weaknesses found.

The Audit Committee meets at least one a guarter and, in order to
fulfil its responsibilities, it convenes at least the following persons:

s Group's Chief Financial Officer; the senior manager
in charge of drafting financial information to explain
the performance of the main financial magnitudes
occurting in the period in question, transactions and
most relevant impact in the period and
communication of the main estimates made.

e Internal Audit Department, in charge of supervising
the interna! control model, including the ICFR,
provides information on the state of any future
weaknesses located as well as the outcome of any
reviews conducted according to the planning
approved by the Audit Committee fof the ongoing
year.

« External Auditors, in order to understand and share
auditing planning or a review, fo be carried out in the
ongoing year, over consolidated and six-monthly
annual  accounts. If control weaknesses are
identified and not considered by the Internal Audit
Department these wil also be communicated, as
well as any other matter deemed appropriate for the
Audit Committee.

In turn, the group, both from the Corporate Finance Department
and the Audit Committee, represented by the Internal Audit
Department, encourages full collabaration and coordination with the
external accounts auditors. Consequently, the external accounts
auditor of the group may directly access the Management, holding
periodic meetings both to obtain the necesaary information to carry
out its task and to communicate any control weaknesses identified
further to its auditing work.

Other significant information

There is no other significant information regarding the Internal
Control System applicable to the Company's financial information.

External audit report
Report on:

Whether the information on the internal control system over
financial reporting has been reviewed by the external auditor,
in which case the entity should include the respective report
as an exhibit. Otherwise, it should provide the reasons
therefor.

Furthemmore, the group has presented the ICFR information
included in this 2014 Corporate Governance Report to the external
auditor, for its review. To this ond, the scope of the auditor's review
procedures has followed Circular E14/2013, of 19 July 2013, issued
by the Spanish Institute of Chartered Accourtants, witich pubtishes
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the Action Guide and standard auditor's fepert, regarding
information on the internal controf system over financial reporting
(ICFR) used by listed companies in Spain.

Attached as an annex is a copy of the external auditor's report.

DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
RECOMMENDATIONS

State the company's degree of compliance with the recommendations of the
Unified Code on corporate governance.

If the company does not comply with a recommendation or goes it partially, a
detailed explanation of the reasons shouyld be given so that shareholders, investors
and the market in general have sufficient information to assess the company's
course of action. Generalised explanations will not he acceptable.

1. The by-Laws of listed companies do not limit the maximum humber of votes that
€an be cast by a single shareholder, or impose other obstaciles to the takeover of
the company by means of the acquisition of its shares on the market.

See sections: A10,B.1,B.2, C.1.23 and C.1.24.
Compiies x Explain

2. When both the parent company and a company controlled by it are listed
companies, they both provide detailed public disclosure on:

a) Their respective areas of activity, and any business dealings between them,
as wel! as between the controlied listed company and other companies
belonging to the group;

b} The mechanisms in place to resolve any conflicts of interest that may arise.
Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

involving a structural change of the company and, in particular, the following, are
submitted for general sharehoiders’ meeting approval:

a) The transformation of listed companies into holding companies through
"subsidiarisation", i.e. reallocating to controlied entities core activities that
were previously carried oyt by the company ifself, even if the latter retains
full ownership of the former;

b} The acquisition or disposal of key operating assets, when it involves an
actual change in the object of the company;

¢} Transactions whoge effect is tantamount to the liquidation of the company.
See section: B.6

Complies x Complies in part Explain

Complies X Explain
5. Matters that are substantlally independent are voted on separately at the general

shareholders’ meeting. in order to allow the shareholders to express their voting
preferences Separately. This rule applies, in particular:
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a) To the appointment or ratification of directors, which shall be voted on
individually;

b} In the event of amendments of the By-Laws, to each article or group of
articles that are substantially Independent of one another.

Complies X Explain
6. Companies allow split votes so financial intermediaries who are recorded as
having shareholder status but act for the account of different clients can divide
their votes in accordance with the instructions given by such clients.
Complies x Explain
7. The board performs its duties with a unity of purpose and independent
judgement, affording equal treatment to all shareholders in furtherance of the
corporate interest, which shall be understood to mean the optimisation, in a
sustained fashion, of the financial value of the company.
it likewise ensures that in its dealings with groups of interest {stakeholders), the
company abides by the laws and regulations, fulfils its obligations and contracts
in good faith, respects the customs and good practices of the industries and
territories in which it carries on its business, and upholds any other social
responsibllity standards to which it has voluntarily adhered.
Complies x Complies in part Explain
8. The board assumes responsibility, as its core mission, for approving the
company's strategy and the organisation required to put it into practice, and to
ensure that Management meets the objectives set while pursuing the company’s
interest and the object of the company. As such, the full Board reserves for itself
the right to approve:
a) The company's policies and general lines of strategy, and in particular:

{iy Strategic or business plan, as well as management objectives and
annual budgets;

(i} Investment and financing policy;

{iii) Definition of the structure of the group of companies;
(iv) Corporate governance poficy;

(v} Corporate social responsibility policy;

{vi) Policy regarding remuneration and evaluation of performance of
senior management;

(vii) Risk control and management policy, as well as the periodic
monitoring of the internal information and control systems.

(viiiy Dividend policy, as well the treasury share policy and, especially,
the limits thereto.

See sections: C.1.14, C.1.16 and E.2
b) The following decisions:

i. At the proposal of the company's top manager, the appointment
and, if applicable, the removal of senior officers, as well as their
severance provisions.

ii. The remuneration of directors and, in the case of executive

dircotors, the additional remuneration for their executive duties and
other terms and conditions that must be included in their contracts.
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iii. The financial information that the company must periodically make
public due to its status as listed company.

iv. Investments or fransactions of all kinds which are strategic in
nature due to the large amount or special characteristics thereof,
unless approval thereof falis upon the shareholders at the general
sharehoiders’ meeting.

v. The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose entifies
or entities registered in countries or territories regarded as tax
havens, as well as any other transactions or operations of a similar
nature whose complexity might impair the transparency of the
group. :

¢} Transactions made by the company with directors, with significant
shareholders or sharehoiders with Board representation, or with other
persons related thereto (“related-party transactions").

However, board authorisations need not be required in connection with
related- party transactions that simultaneously meet the following three
conditions:

1°, They are governed by standard-form agreements applied on
an across-the- board basis to a large number of clients;

2° They are conducted at prices or rates generally set by the
party acting as supplier of the goods or services in question;

30 The amount thereof is no more than 1% of the company's
annual revenues.

Itis recommended that related-party transactions only be approved by the
board upon a prior favourable report of the audit committee or stich other
committee handling the same function; and that the directors affected
thereby should neither exercise nor delegate their votes, and shouid
withdraw from the meeting room while the board deliberates and votes on
the transaction.

It is recommended that the powers granted herein to the board are
conferred without the power of delegation, except for those mentioned
under b} and ¢) above, which may, for urgent reasons, be adopted by the
executive committee subject to subsequent ratification by the fuil board.
See sections: D.1 and D.&
Complies x Complies in part Explain

9. In order to operate effectively and in a participatory manner, the board ideally is

comprised of no fewer than five and no more than fifteen members,
See section: C.1.2

Complies x Explain

10. External directors, proprietary and independent, Occupy an ample majority of the

board and the number of executive directors is the minimum necessary number,
bearing in mind the complexity of the corporate group and the percentage
interest held by the executive directors in the company's share capital.
See sections: A.3and C.1.3

Complies x Complies in part Explain

11. Among external directors, the relation between the number of probrietary
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directers and independent directors reflects the proportion existing between the
share capital of the company represented by proprietary directors and the rest of
its capital.

This strict proportionality standard can be relaxed so that the weight of
proprietary directors is greater than would correspond to the total percentage of
the share capital that they represent:

1°.  In large cap companies where few or no equity stakes attain the legal
threshold as significant, but there are shareholders holding interests with a
high absolute value.

2°.  In companies with a plurality of unrelated shareholders represented on the
board.

See sections: A.2, A3 and C.1.3
Complies Explain x

NOTE: To the extent the Board of Directors is a small operating model (9 members), it is
impossible in practice for the number of Proprietary and Independenit Directors to reflect
the proportion existing in the Company’s share capital. However, the proportion of
Independent Directors (44.44%) exceeds Recommendation 12 of the Unified Code for
Corporate Governance, which recommends that independent directors represent a third.

12. The number of independent directors represents at least one-third of the total
number of directors.

See section: C.1.3
Complies x Explain

13. The status of each director is explained by the board at the general shargholders’
meeting at which the shareholders are to make or ratify their appointment and
such status is confirmed or reviewed, as the case may be, annually in the Annual
Corporate Governance Report, after verification by the appointments committee.
Said report also discloses the reasons for the appointment of proprietary
directors at the proposal of shareholders controlling less than 5% of the share
capital, as well as.the reasons for not having accommodated formal petitions, if
any, for presence on the board from sharehclders whose equity stake is equal to
or greater than that of others at whose proposal proprietary directors have been
appointed.

See sections: C.1.3and C.1.8
Complies x Complies in part Explain

4. When the number of female director is scant or nil, the appointments committee
takes steps to ensure that when new vacancies are filled:

a) Selection procedures do not have an implied bias that hinders the
selection of female directors;

b) The company deliberately looks for women with the target professional
profile and includes them among the potential candidates.

See sections; C.1.5,C.1.6,C.2.2. and C.2.4
Complies X Complies in part Explain

15. The Chairman, as the person responsible for the effective operation of the board,
ensures that directors receive adequate Information in advance of board
meetings; promotes debate and the active involvement of directors during board
meetings; safeguards their rights to freely take a position and express their
opinion; and, working with the chairs of the appropriate committees, organises
and coordinates reguiar evaiuations of the Board and, where appropriaie, the
chief executive officer or top manager.
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See sections: C.1.19 and C.1.41

Complies x Complies in part Explain

16. When the Chairman of the Board is also the chief executive or top manager of the

company, one of the independent directors is authorised to request the call to a
hoard meeting or the inclusion of new business on the agenda; to coordinate and
hear the concerns of external directors; and to lead the hoard's evaluation of the
chair.

See section: C.1.22

Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

17. The Secretary of the Board takes particular care to ensure that the board's

actions:

a) Adhere to the letter and the spirit of laws and their implementing
regulations, including those approved by the regulatory authorities;

b) Comply with the company's By-Laws and the Regulations for the general
shareholders' meeting, the Regulations of the board and other regulations
of the company;

¢} Are informed by those corporate governance recommendations included
in this Unified Code as the company has subscribed to.

And, in order to safeguard the independence, impartiality and professionalism
of the Secretary, the appointment and removal thereof are reported by the
appointments committee and approved by the full board; and that such
appoinfment and removal procedures are set forth in the regulations of the
board.

See section: C.1.34

Complies x Complies in part Explain

18. The Board meets with the frequency required to perform its duties efficiently, in

accordance with the calendar and agendas set at the beginning of the financial
year, and each director is entitled to propose items of the agenda that were not
originaily included therein.

See section: C.1.29

Complies x Complies in part Explain

19. Directors' absences are limited to unavoidable cases and quantified in the Annual

Corporate Governance Report. And when there is no choice but to grant a proxy,
it is granted with insfructions,

See sections: C.1.28, C.1.29 and C.1.30

Complies x Complies in part Explain

20. When Directors or the Secretary express concerns about a proposal or, in the

21,

case of the directors, regarding the running of the company, and such concerns
have not been resolved at a board meeting, such concerns are recorded in the
minutes at the request of the person expressing them.

Complies X Complies in part Explains Not applicable
The full Board evaluates the following on a yearly basis:

a) The quality and efficiency of the Board's operation;
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22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

b) On the basis of a report submitted to it by the appointments committee, the
performance of the Chairman of the Board and the top manager duties;

¢) The performance of its committees, on the basis of the reports furnished
by them,

See sections: C.1.19 and C.1.20
Complies x Complies in part Explain

All Directors are able to exercise the right to request any additional information
they require on matters within the board's purview. Unless the By-laws or the
regulations of the board provide otherwise, such requests are addressed to the
Chairman or the Secretary of the Board.

See section: C.1.41

Complies x Explain
All Directors are entitled to ask the company for the advice they need to carry out
their duties. The company provides suitable channels for the exercise of this

right, which, in special circumstances, may include external advice at the
company's expense.

See section: C.1.40

Complies x Explain
Companies organise induction programmes for new directors to rapidly and
adequately acquaint them with the company and its corporate governance rules.
Directors are also offered refresher training programmes when circumstances so
advise.

Complies x Complies in pait Explain

Companies require that Directors devote sufficient time and effort to perform
their duties efficienfly, and, as such:

a) Directors apprige the appointments committee of their other professional
duties, in case they might detract from the necessary dedication;

b} Companies fay down rules about the number of boards on which their
directors may sit.

See sections: C.1.12, C.1.13and C.1.17
Complies Complies in part X Explain

NOTE: The Company has no rules about the number of boards of directors o which its
directors belong; this information is not deemed relevant to appraise their dedication. In
any case, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee off the Company is
entrusted with ensuring that directors are suitable, qualified and available to adequately
fulfil their duties.

The proposal for the appointment or re-election of directors that the board
submits to the shareholders at the general shareholders' meeting, as well as the
interim appointment of directors to fill vacancies, are approved by the hoard:

a) Atthe proposal of the appointments committee, in the case of independent
directors.

b} Subject to a prior report from the appointments committee, in the case of
other directors.
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Complies x Complies in part Explain

27. Companies post the following information regarding its Directors on their
wehsites, and keep such information updated:

a) Professional and biographical profile;
b) Other boards of directors of listed or unlisted companies on which they sit;

¢} Other boards of director's classification, specifying, for proprietary
directors, the shareholder they represent or to whom they are related.

d) Date of their first and subsequent appointments as a company director;
and

e} Shares held in the company and options thereon held by them.

Complies x Complies in part Explain

28. Proprietary directors tender their resignation when the shareholder they represent
sells its entire shareholding interest and also, an appropriate number of them,
when such shareholder reduces its interest to. a level that requires a reduction in
the number of its proprietary directors.

See section: C.1.3
Complies x Complies in part Explain

29. The Board of Directors does not propose the removal of any independent director
prior to the expiration of the term set by the by-laws for which such director was
appointed, except where good cause is found by the Board upon a prior report of
the Appointments Committee. In particular, good cause shall be deemed to exist
whenever the director has failed to perform the duties inherent in the position
held thereby or comes under any of the circumstances causing the director to no
longer be independent pursuant to the provisions of Order ECC/461/2013.

The removal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of
takeover bids, mergers or other similar corporate transactions that entail a
change in the equity structure of the company, when such changes in the
structure of the board follow from the proportionality standard mentioned in
Recommendation 11.

See section: C.1.2,C.1.8, C1.19and C.1.27
Complies Explain x

NOTE: Directors were removed during the 2014 financial year, in the context of listing
its shares on the stock exchange markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia,
in order to reduce the number of Directors and render the Board of Directors more
operative, as well as to include a new Chaimman on the Board, acling as Independent
Director.

30. Companies establish rules obliging directors to report and, if appropriate, fo
resign in those instances as a result of which the credit and reputation of the
company might he damaged and, in particular, they require that such directors
report to the Board any criminal charges brought against them, and the progress
of any subsequent proceedings.

If a director is indicted or tried for any of the crimes described in section 213 of
the Companies Act, the board examines the matter as scon as practicable and, in
view of the particular circumstances theéreof, decides whether or not it is
appropriate for the director to continue to hold office. And the board provides a
substantiated account thereof in the Annual Corporate Governance Report.

See sections: C.1.42 and C.1.43
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31.

32,

33.

34,

35.

36.

Complies x Complies in part Explain

All directors clearly express their opposition when they feel that any proposed
resolution submitted to the board might be contrary to the best interests of the
company. And in particular, independent directors and the other directors not
affected by the potential conflict of interest do likewise in the case of decisions
that could be detrimental to the shareholders lacking Board representation.

When the Board adopts material or reiterated resolutions about which a director
has expressed serious reservations, such director draws the pertinent
conclusions and, if such director chooses to resign, sets out the reasons in the
letter referred to in the next recommendation.

This Recommendation also applies to the Secretary of the Board, even if the
Secretary is not a director.

Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

Directors who give up their position before their tenure expires, through
resignation or otherwise, explain the reasons in a letter sent to all members of the
board. Without prejudice to such withdrawal being commuriicated as a significant
event, the reason for the withdrawal is explained in the Annual Corporate
Governarice Report.

See section: C.1.9

NOTE: The letters of resignation provided by Directors who were removed during 2014
are a consequence of a prior agreement with the Company, which is why this
recommendation is not applicable. However, in the future it is expected that any
Directors giving up their post will explain the relevant reasons in their respective letters
of resignation,

Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

Remuneration paid by means of delivery of shares in the company or companies
that are members of the group, share options or instruments indexed to the price
of the shares, and variable remuneration linked to the company's performance or
pension schemes in confined to executive directors.

This recommendation shall not apply to the delivery of shares when such
delivery is subjected to the condition that the directors hold the shares until they
cease to hold office as directors.

Complies Explain x

NOTE: As part of the remuneration package assigned to the Chairman of the
company’'s Board of Directors, who acts as an Independent External Director, on 7 May
2014 the General Shareholders Mesting agreed, on an exceptional and non-recurring
basis, fo grant RSUs for an amount of 100,000 eurcs.

The remuneration of external directors is such as is necessary to compensate
them for the dedication, qualifications, and responsibility required by their
position, but is not so high as to compromise their independence.

Complies x Explain

The remuneration linked to company earnings takes into account any
qualifications included in the external audit report that reduce such earnings.

Complies x Explain Not applicable

in the case of variable remuneration, remuneration policies include technical
limits and safeguards required to ensure that such remuneration reflects the
professional performance of the beneficiaries thereof and not siimply the general
performance of the markets or of the industry in which the company does
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business or circumstances of this kind.

Complies x Explain Not applicable

37. When there is an executive committee (hereinafter, "Executive Committee”), the

breakdown of its members by director category is similar to that of the board, and
its secretary is the secretary of the board.

See sections: C.2.1and C.2.6
Complies Complies in part x Explain Not applicable

NOTE: Article 38 of the Regulations of the Company's Board of Directors allows the
possibility of the Board Secretary not necessarily belonging to the Executive Committee.

38. The board is always kept informed of the matters dealt with and the resolutions

adopted by the executive committee, and all members of the Board receive a
copy of the minutes of the meetings of the executive committee.

Complies x Explain Not applicable

39. In addition to the audit committee mandatory under the Securities Market Act, the

board of directors forms a single appointments and remuneration committee as a
separate committee of the board, or an appointments commitiee and a
remuneration committee.

The rules governing the make-up and operation of the audit committee and the
appointments and remuneration committee or committees are set forth in the
regulations of the board, and include the following:

a)} The board appoints the members of such committees, taking into account
the background knowledge, qualifications, and experience of the
directors and the responsibilities of each committee, discusses its
proposals and reports, and receives a report, at the first meeting of the
full board following the meetings of such committees, on their activities
and the work done.

b) These committees are formed exclusively of external directors and have a
minimum of three members. The foregoing is without prejudice to the
attendance of executive directors or senior officers, when expressly
resolved by the members of the committee.

c) Committee chairs are independent directors.

d) They may receive external advice, whenever they feel this is necessary
for the discharge of their duties.

e) Minutes are prepared of their meetings, and a copy is sent to all board
members.

See sections: C.21and C.24

Complies x Complies in part Explain

40. Supervising compliance with internal codes of conduct and corporate

41.

governance rules is entrusted to the audit committee, the appointments
committee or, if they exist separately, to the compliance or corporate governance
committee.
See sections: C.2.3and C.24

Complies x Explain
The members of the audit committee and, parficularly, the chair thereof, are

appointed taking into account their background knowledae and experience in
accounting, auditing, and risk management matters.
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Complies x Explain

42. Listed companies have an internal audit function which, under the supervision of
the audit committee, ensures the smooth operation of the information and
internal control systems.

See section: C.2.3
Complies x Explain

43. The head of internal audit presents an annual work plan to the audit committee;
reports to it directly on any issues arising in the execution of such plan; and
submits an activities report to it at the end of each financial year.

Complies x Complies in part Explain
44. The risk control and management policy specifies at least:

a) The different types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal,
reputational, etc.) the company is exposed to, including contingent
liabilities and other off-balance sheet risks among financial or economic
risks;

b) The determination of the risk level the company seeés as acceptable:

€) The measures planned in order to mitigate the impact of identified risks in
the event that they materialise;

d) The internal reporting and control systems to be used to monitor and
manage the above risks, including contingent liabilities and off-balance
sheet risks.

See section E
Complies x Complies in part Explain
45. The audit committee's role is to:
1° With respect to the internal control and reporting systems:

a} Properly manage and disclose the main risks, if any, identified as a result
of supervising the effectiveness of the internal control of the company
and internal auditing.

b) Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit area;
make proposals regarding the selection, appointment, re-efection, and
withdrawal of the head of the internal audit area; propose the budget for
such area; receive periodic information regarding its activities; and verify
that senior management takes into account the conclusions and
recommendations contained in its reports.

¢} Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby the employees may give
notice, on a confidential basis and, if deemed appropriate, anonymously,
of any potentially significant irregularities, especially of a financial and
accounting nature, that they notice at the company.

2° With respect to the external auditor:

a) Regularly receive from the extermal auditor information regarding the
audit plan and the results of the implementation thereof, and verify that
senior management takes its recommendations into account,

b) Ensure the independence of the external auditor, to which end:
i The company reports a change of auditor to the CNMV as a

significant event, accompanied by a statement of any
disagreements with the outgoing auditor and the reasons for the
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same.

il. in the event of resignation of the external auditor, the committee
investigates the circumstances that may have given rise thereto.

See sections: C.1.36, C.2.3, C.24andE.2
Complies x Complies in part Explain

46. The audit committee may cause any company employee or officer to appear
before it, and even order their appearance without the presence of any other
officer.

Complies x Explain

47. The audit committee reports to the board, prior to the adoption thereby of the
corresponding decisions, on the following matters specified in Recommendation
8:

a) The financial information that the company must periodically make public
due fo its status as listed company. The committee should ensure that
interim accounts are prepared under the same accounting standards as the
annual accounts and, to this end, consider whether a limited review by the
external auditor is appropriate.

b) The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose entities or
entities registered in countries or territories regarded as tax havens, as well
as any other transactions or operations of a similar nature whose
complexity might impair the transparency of the group.

¢) Related-party transactions, unless such prior reporting duty has been
assigned to another supervision and control committee,

See sections: C.2.3and C.2.4
Complies x Complies in part Explain
48. The board of directors seeks to present the accounts to the shareholders at the
general shareholders' meeting without reservations or qualifications in the audit
report and, in the exceptional instances where they do exist, both the chair of the
audit committee and the auditors give a clear account to the shareholders of the
content and scope of such reservations or qualifications.
See section; C.1.38
Complies x Complies in part Explain
49, The majority of the members of the appointments committee -or of the
appointments and remuneration committee, if one and the same- are independent
directors.
See section: C.2.1
Complies x Explain Not applicable

50. The appointments committee has the following duties, in addition to those stated
in the preceding recommendations:

a) To assess the qualifications, background knowledge and experience
necessary to sit on the Board, defining, accordingly, the duties and
quatifications required of the candidates to fill each vacancy, and decide
the time and dedication necessary for them to properly perform their duties.

b) To examine or organise, in the manner it deems appropriate, the
succession of the chair and the chief executive and, if appropriate, make
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51.

proposals to the board for such succession to take place in an orderly and
well-planned manner.

¢) To report on senior officer appointments and removals that the chief
executive proposes to the board.

d) To report to the board on the gender diversity issues discussed in
Recommendation 14 of this Code.

See section: C.2.4
Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

The appointments committee consults with the company's president and the
chief executive, especially on matters relating to executive directors.

And that any board member may request that the appointments committee
consider possible candidates to fill vacancies for the position of director, if it
finds them suitably qualified.

Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

52, The remuneration committee is responsible for the following duties, in addition to

those set forth in the earlier recommendations:

a) To propose to the board of directors:

i. The remunevation policy for directors and senior officers;

iii. The individual remuneration of executive directors and
other terms of their contracts.

iii. The basic terms and conditions of the contracts with
senior officers.

b} To ensure compliance with the remuneration policy set by the company.
See section: C.2.4

Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

53. The remuneration committee consults with the Chairman and the top manager of

the company, especially on matters relating to executive directors and senior
officers.

Complies x Not comply

H. OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

1.

If there are any significant aspects regarding corporate governance at the
company or at entities of the group that is not included in the other sections of
this report, but should be included in order to provide more complete and well-
reasoned information regarding the corporate governance structure and
practices at the entity or its group, briefly describe them.

In this section, you may also include any other information, clarification, or
comment relating to the prior sections of this report to the extent they are
relevant and not repetitive.

Specifically, state whether the company is subject to laws other than Spanish
laws regarding corporate dgovernance and, if applicable, include such
information as the company is required to provide that is different from the
information required in this report.

The company may also state whether it has voluntarily adhered to other
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international, industrial or other codes of ethical principles or good practices. If
s0, identify the code in question and the date of adherence thereto.

N/A

This annual corporate governance report was approved by the Board of
Directors of the company at its meeting 24/02/2015.

State whether any directors voted against or abstained in connection with the
approval of this Report.

Yes [ | No
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